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CITY OF LAKEWOOD

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL Program
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Pass-Through Or Award Non Cash Non Cash
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title NUMBER Entity Number Amount Receipts Receipts Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through the Western Reserve Area Agency on Aging:

Nutrition Program for the Elderly 10.570 N/A 31,410 0 31,410 0 31,410
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 31,410 0 31,410 0 31,410
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Direct Program

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-98-MC-39-0007 2,549,056 2,280,766 0 2,280,766 0

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-98-MC-39-0007 2,560,000 715,480 0 715,480 0

Total Community Development Block Grant: 5,109,056 2,996,246 0 2,996,246 0

Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 S-98-MC-39-0007 99,000 70,343 0 70,343 0
Passed Through Cuyahoga Housing Consortium:

HOME Investment Partnerships Program Grant 14.239 M-98-DC396216-AC 231,800 106,164 0 106,164 0

Total Passed Through Cuyahoga Housing Consortium 231,800 106,164 0 106,164 0
Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 5,439,856 3,172,753 0 3,172,753 0
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Passed Through the Western Reserve Area Agency on Aging:

Medical Assistance Program (Passport Services) 93.778 N/A 85,403 85,403 0 85,403 0

Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging - Title IlI-B 93.044 N/A 166,511 166,511 0 166,511 0

Special Programs for the Aging - Title IlI-C 93.045 N/A 56,651 11,360 45,291 11,360 45,291

Total Aging Cluster 223,162 177,871 45,291 177,871 45,291
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 308,565 263,274 45,291 263,274 45,291
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 98-LB-VX-2286 22,702 22,702 0 22,702 0
Total U.S. Department of Justice 22,702 22,702 0 22,702 0
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 5,802,533 3,458,729 76,701 3,458,729 76,701

Note: The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule




CITY OF LAKEWOOD
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE A--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the City
of Lakewood’s (the City) federal awards programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting.

NOTE B--SUBRECIPIENTS

The City passes-through certain Federal assistance received from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development to other governments or not-for-profit agencies (subrecipients). As described in Note
A, the City records expenditures of Federal awards to subrecipients when paid in cash.

The subrecipient agencies have certain compliance responsibilities related to administering these Federal
Programs. Under Federal Circular A-133, the City is responsible for monitoring subrecipients to help assure
that Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that performance goals are achieved.

NOTE C--MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require that the City contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support
Federally funded programs. The City has complied with the matching requirements. The expenditure of
non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.

NOTE D--U.S. DEPT. OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)/EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT

The City has established a revolving loan program to provide low-interest loans to persons from low-
moderate income households to rehabilitate their homes. The Federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) grants money for these loans directly to the City. The initial loan of this money is
recorded as a disbursement on the accompanying Schedule. Loans repaid, including interest, are used to
make additional loans. Such subsequent loans are subject to certain compliance requirements imposed by
HUD, but are not included as disbursements on the Schedule. These loans are collateralized by mortgages
on the property. At December 31, 1999, the gross amount of loans outstanding under this program was
$3,385,923. Delinquent amounts due was $276,998.

NOTE E - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance, meals received from the Western Reserve Area Office on Aging, is reported in
the Schedule at the value of $1.84 per meal served.

For congregate meals, the U.S. Department of Agriculture allocates $.55 per meal and the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services allocates $1.29 per meal. For home delivered meals, the U.S. Department
of Agriculture allocates $.55 per meal and state and local funds allocate $1.29 per meal.

For the year ended December 31, 1999, the City served 35,109 congregate meals and 22,000 home
delivered meals through the City’s Office on Aging meal program. Therefore, $31,410 was allocated to the
U.S. Department of Agriculture, $45,291 was allocated to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services and $28,380 was allocated to state and local funds. The allocation to state and local funds is not
presented on the Schedule.

CFDA - Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

N/A - Not available
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor Madeline Cain
and Members of City Council
Cuyahoga County

City of Lakewood

12650 Detroit Avenue
Lakewood, Ohio 44107

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Lakewood, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the City) as
of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2000.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the City in a separate letter dated June 23, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have
reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated June 23, 2000.
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This reportis intended for the information of management, City Council, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

June 23, 2000



Lausche Bldg
615 W Superior Ave

STATE OF OHIO Floor 12

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cleveland OH 44113 - 1801
Telephone 216-787-3665

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-626-2297

Facsimile 216-787-3361
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO ITS MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor Madeline Cain
and Members of City Council
City of Lakewood

Cuyahoga County

12650 Detroit Avenue
Lakewood, Ohio 44107

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Lakewood, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the City) with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31,
1999. The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the City’'s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Internal Control Over Compliance
(Continued)

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over federal compliance that
do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter
dated June 23, 2000.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2000. Our audit was performed
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-
purpose financial statements taken as a whole

This reportis intended for the information of management, City Council, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

June 23, 2000



CITY OF LAKEWOOD
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable No
control weakness conditions
reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non- | No
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal No
control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable No
internal control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unqualified
Opinion
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings No
under § .510?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Community Development Block Grant,
CFDA #14.218
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs | Type A: > $ 300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None.
3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
None.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 §.315 (b)

Finding Finding Fully Not Corrected, Partially Corrected; Significantly
Number Summary Corrected? | Different Corrective Action Taken; or Finding No
Longer Valid; Explain:
1998-20818- Year 2000 No The Lakewood Municipal Court has a fully functional
001 Compliance manual accounting system in place.
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DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

SUSAN M. NOBILIO
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF FINANGE

12650 DETROIT AVENUE » 44107 » 216/529-6080 » FAX 216/5621-1379

June 26, 2000

To: Honorable Mayor Madeline A. Cain,
City Council, and the Citizens of the
City of Lakewood, Chio:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Lakewood for the year ended December 31, 1999. This report presents comprehensive financial and
operating information relating to the City’s activities during 1999. The responsibility for the
accuracy of all data presented, its completeness and fairess of presentation, rests with the City of
Lakewood, and specifically, the Department of Finance. We believe the data, as presented, is
accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the
financial position and the results of operations of the City; and that all disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activity have been included.

The CAFR is arranged in three sections:

» the Introductory Section contains the table of contents, a list of
principal City officials, an organizational chart, and this
transmittal letter.

« the Financial Section includes the Report of Independent
Accountants; the general purpose financial statements, the notes
to these financial statements; and more detailed combining and
individual fund and account group statements and scheduies.

+ the Statistical Section includes select financial, economic and

demographic information about the City, which may be used to
indicate trends for comparative fiscal periods.

;
&



The Reporting Entity

In evaluating the definition of the governmental reporting entity, the City adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting
Entity.” The City’s financial statements include all organizations, activities, and component units for
which the City (primary government) is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined
as the level of accountability that exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an
organization’s governing board and is able to impose its will on that organizatjon or there is potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on,
the primary government. ‘

The City’s financial reporting entity includes all funds, account groups, agencies, boards and
commissions that are part of the primary government, including: police and fire protection; waste
collection; water and sewer service; Strect maintenance; street construction; cultural activities;
community development and planning; and parks and recreation facilities. The City also offers
extensive services for its youth and senior citizens.

The following entities are affiliated organizations of the City of Lakewood; however the City is not
financially accountable for these entities. Therefore, these entities have been excluded from the
financial reporting entity.

e Lakewood Hospital, a full service, short-term, acute care general hospital, is located in the center
of the City. Lakewood Hospital admits approximately 11,000 patients annually and employs
approximately 1,300 people making it the largest employer within the City.

# The Board of Education of the Lakewood City School District is a separate political sub-division
of the State, the territorial boundaries of which are conterminous with the City limits. The
Lakewood Board of Education provides public education for grades 1 through 12 and is the
second largest employer within the City employing approximately 800 employees.

City of Lakewood

Lakewood is located along the shores of Lake Erie, 5 miles west of Cleveland’s Public Square. The
City’s 5.6 square miles are comprised primarily of a vintage residential community offering diversity
in housing from modest single homes and apartments to luxury “Gold Coast” condominiums and
homes of distinct architectural design located within a national historic district. Lakewood is
recognized for its tree-lined streets, excellent school system, and outstanding City services. The 1990
U.S. Census shows the population to be 59,718, making it the 14th largest city in Ohio with an
average household size of 2.2 persons.

The City operates under a City Charter that provides for a Mayor/Councii form of government.
Legislative authority is vested in a seven member council (three at-large and one for each of four
wards in the City). Council members are elected for a four year term. The Council sets compensation
of City officials and employees, and enacts ordinances and resolutions relating to City services, tax
levies, appropriations and indebtedness, licensing of regulated trades, and other municipal purposes.
The City’s Chief Executive Officer is the Mayor, who is elected by the voters for a four-year term.



Econemic Condition and QOutlogk

Lakewood’s economy reflects the same positive direction of healthy economic growth enjoyed by
Greater Cleveland and Ohio over the past several years. On a budget basis, municipal income tax
collections for Lakewocod have increased approximately 4.6% annuaily since 1996. On an annuai
basis, budget basis collections totaled:

Income Tax
Year Collections
1996 $13,308,898
1997 $14,011,296
1998 314,643,658
1999 $15,230,142

Likewise, the value of real property in Lakewood has risen steadily. Properties in Lakewood were
reappraised by the County Auditor in 2000 as part of a sexennial reappraisal mandated by the State of
Ohio. The total assessed valuation rose by approximately 14.9%. This increase is greater than the
County-wide increase of 12.8%. The impact of this increase in property values will be recognized in
the property tax collection year 2001. The current levy, which will be collected in 2000, is based on a
total assessed valnation of $723,953,648.

With a light industrial and moderate commercial economic base, Lakewood is characterized overall
by above-average wealth and income levels. Lakewood is home to approximately 1,100 businesses
and agencies that employ over 31,000 people. Employment of Lakewood residents by sector, as
supplied by the 1990 U.S. Census, shows 10,630 in managerial and professional jobs, 11,254 in
technical and sales positions, and 3,902 in service industries. Almost 82% of the workforce is
accounted for in these sectors. The remaining 18% includes 2,534 in the precision and craft sector
and 3,257 in operations, fabrication and general labor. The average federal adjusted gross income
reported on all 1998 State of Ohio tax returns was 345,550 per return. Lakewood residents filed
28,755 State of Ohio tax returns with an average federal adjusted gross income of $40,962 per return.
While 21% of Lakewood residents work within the City boundaries, 31% work in Cleveland, and
48% work in other greater Cleveland suburbs.

The unemployment rate for Lakewood residents is consistently below the county, state and national
level. The unemployment rate for the City was 3.0% in 1999 and was 2.7% as of May 2000.
Comparative unemployment rates for the months of January 1999, January 2000 and May 2000 are
shown below:

January 1999 January 2000 May 2000
City 3.0% 3.1% 2. 7%
County 4.8% 4.9% 42%
State 4.9% 4.7% 3.6%
Nation 4.8% 4.5% 3.9%

Another key indicator of Lakewood’s continuing economic strength is the investment activity in its
residential and commercial construction, as measured by the construction value of building permits
issued. The following table shows the number of building permits issued by the City during the
period from 1995 through 1999 and the estimated cost of new construction, alterations, and repairs
authorized pursuant thereto:



Number of Building Estimated

Year Permits Jssued Construction Value
1995 3,696 § 14,836,637
1996 3,547 13,657,463
1997 3,622 12,507,996
1998 3,807 18,734,237
1999 3,266 17,017,253

The City’s educational and recreational programming provided by the Lakewood City School District
has received positive attention and numerous awards. The Lakewood Schoo! District has been
recognized as a Top 100 School Nationwide by Money magazine. In May of 1999 a school operating
property tax levy for 4.9 mills was passed by the voters. The new funding will provide financial
stability within the school system and consequently, will also maintain Lakewood’s reputation as a
desirable community for home-buyers. In fact, over the past seven years, the average price for a
single-family home in Lakewood has risen faster than the increase experienced in Cuyahoga County
communities as a whole. The average single-family home price increased in 1999 by 9.6% percent
over similar data for 1998. In 1999, the average price of a Lakewood single-family home was
$134,707.

Lakewood Hospital has planned to expand its facilities with an 11,000 square foot addition at a cost
of approximately $6.2 million. The plans include a renovation and expansion of the emergency room;
the addition of four observation rooms in the emergency room; and other changes to the ambuiance
entrances and critical care units. Construction is anticipated to begin in late 2000. During 1999, the
emergency room at Lakewood Hospital served 34,000 patients.

The Lakewood YMCA is planning an approximate $10 million building expansion to increase its
current facility from 30,000 to 48,000 square feet. Plans inciude the addition of a multi-use field

house, expansion and renovation of the aquatics facility, and the upgrade of fitness equipment.

Major Initiatives

The City’s 1999 operating budget focused on providing high quality services to residents and
businesses. The budget provided funding for numerous programs that enhance the safety of the City’s
neighborhoods and strengthen the community.

During 1999, the City undertook numerous prajects to ensure that the City was Year 2000 compliant.
These efforts included an identification of all City hardware, software, and ancillary devices fitted
with embedded chips; assessing the inventory of such items to determine Year 2000 compliance;
repairing or replacing non-compliant equipment; and the testing and validation of the improvements.
Through this process, the City determined that it was necessary to replace the mainframe and
operating software; upgrade the citywide computer network; and replace many personal computers
and peripheral equipment. In addition, new application software was implemented for the following
operations:
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- Public Safety including Computer-Aided Dispatch and Record Management;

» Finance including General Ledger, Purchasing, Accounts Payable, Payroll,
Income Tax, and Utility Billing;

- Human Resources;

«  Municipal Court Record Management;

« Building Permits and Code Enforcement; and

. Human Services.Record Management.

These projects provided for the continuous delivery of services and operations through the new year
while also improving the operational efficiency of numerous departments/divisions.

In 1999, the City of Lakewood transitioned the emergency medical service operation previously
managed and operated by Lakewood Hospital to the City of Lakewood Division of Fire. The City, in
conjunction with Lakewood Hospital, developed emergency medical improvements designed to meet
the changing needs of the community and increase medical response within the City of Lakewood.
The transition of emergency medical service to the City’s Division of Fire resulted in the addition of a
third EMS squad; improvement in the geographic distribution of squads throughout the City; doubling
the number of medically trained personnel available to respond to medical emergencies; and
improved response times to emergencies. Since the transition, emergency response times throughout
the City have dropped dramatically. Seventy-eight percent of all EMS response times are now made
within four minutes of a 911 call.

The City’s economic development efforts were successful in attracting two new businesses to the City
of Lakewood as well as assisting the expansion of several existing businesses. The Department of
Planning and Development assisted businesses in locating suitable industrial and/or commercial
space; completed a study of downtown Lakewood office space and parking; and conducted meetings
with various merchants to promote the continued health of businesses along Lakewood’s commercial
corridors.

During 1999, the City was successful in obtaining zero-interest loan financing from the State of Ohio
10 support two sewer projects within the City. These projects included the repair of a breached wall
between the storm and sanitary interceptors; improvements to the sewer line below West Clifton
Road; and the installation of a new sanitary sewer which eliminates the combined sanitary and storm
sewers on Edgewater Drive. The loan financing for these projects totaled approximately $740,000
{which represents 90% of the total project costs).

Winterhurst Ice Rink was selected to host certain novice events and practice sessions for the 2000
U.S. Figure Skating Championships. Prior to the events, the City completed over $1.3 million in
improvements to the facility to prepare for this competition. All new mechanical systems were
placed into service resulting in energy savings of approximately $72,000 annually. In addition, the
electrical supply and distribution system, sound system, lighting and flooring were replaced.

Over $2.4 million in funds provided by the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program
were invested in the City’s residential and commercial neighborhoods in 1999. Five streets within the
City’s Improvement Target Area (ITA) were selected and reconstructed in 1999. These projects
included the replacement of existing driving surface and underlying base, new sidewalks, curbs and
driveway aprons. In addition, CDBG funds were spent on housing rehabilitation for 98 Lakewood
homes and stotefront renovations of three retail establishments; “Project Pride” - an inspection
program for 2l single, multi-family, and retail occupancies located in the City’s ITA; sidewalk
replacement; and tree plantings. Numerous educational and recreation programs benefiting the
diverse residents of the community were also funded in part with the City’s CDBG allocation.
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The City has been awarded several grants from various sources to offset the costs of other endeavors
benefiting the community. In 1999, the City was awarded a grant from the Byrne Memorial Law
Enforcement Program to fund a project called “Partners Against Crime.” The objectives of this
project included violence prevention targeted at middle-school aged youth and positive activity
programming.

In 2000, the City will assist St. Edward High School in financing a portion of its $15 miilion
renovation and expansion project through the issuance of tax-exempt Industrial Revenue Bonds. The
City will issue $12.5 million of conduit debt on behalf of the school to provide funding for a new
student activities center, the renovation of current educational and athletic facilities, and the
construction of a new student life and leadership center. The tax-exempt financing will save the
institution approximately $5 million in interest expense over 30 years. St. Edward High School has
brought national and statewide recognition to the City of Lakewood through their numerous decades
of achievement in both academics and athletics.

Financial Information

Management of the City of Lakewood is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed fo ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or
misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The
internal contro!l structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

Single Audit

The City of Lakewood, as a recipient of federal financial assistance, is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, and the United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
“Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-FProfit Organizations.” The Single Audit includes the
Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures, findings and recommendations, and the auditor’s reports
on internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As a part of
Lakewood’s single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure,
including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs.

The results of the City’s single audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 provided no
instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of
applicable laws and regulations. The City anticipates no significant findings for 1999. The Single
Audit report is separate from this comprehensive annual financial report and is available from the

City.
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Budgetary Controls

Detailed provisions for the City’s budget, tax levies, and appropriations are set forth in the Ohio
Revised Code and the City Charter. On or before the fifieenth day of November in each year, the
Mayor, Direcior of Public Works and Director of Finance shall submit an appropriation budget to
Council.

The Council must adopt a permanent appropriation measure for the fiscal year by April 1.
Additionally, the Cuyahoga County Auditor must certify that the City’s appropriation measure does
not exceed the amounts set forth in the County Budget Commission’s Certificate of Estimated
Resources.

The City’s budget is legally adopted and controlled on a budget basis; therefore, the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-
GAAP Budgetary Basis) reports actua! cash revenues and expenditures (including encumbrances)
compared to budgeted amounts. The City maintains budgetary control on a non-GAAP basis at the
fund level. Estimated expenditure amounts are encumbered prior to the release of a purchase order to
vendors or the finalization of other contracts. Encumbrances which would exceed available fund
budget levels are not approved umtil the City Council approves additional appropriations. Any
encumbrances that remain open at the end of the year are reported as a reserve of fund balance.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

In addition to the budgetary controls noted above, City ordinances require that all professional service
contracts in excess of $5,000 be authorized by City Council. All contracts in excess of $7,500 must
be authorized by Council and approved by the Board of Control comprised of the Mayor, and the
Directors of the Law Department, the Finance Department, and the Public Works Department.

Accouniing System

The City’s accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and
other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and
changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The types of
funds utilized are defined by generally accepted accounting principles. The City maintains separate
funds for those required by law and for sound financial administration.

The Governmental and Fiduciary Fund Types of the City are maintained on a modified accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues and related receivables are recognized when measurable and available.
Expenditures, except for principal and interest on long term obligations, are recorded as fund
liabilities when incurred. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by all Proprietary Funds. A
more detailed explanation of the basis of accounting for the various funds is included in the Notes to
the Combined Financial Statements.
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Governmental Funds

The following schedule presents a summary of Governmental Fund revenues on a GAAP basis,
including the increases (decreases) over the prior year as restated, for the year ended December 31,
1999:

1999 GAAP BASIS REVENUES
All Governmental Funds
Percent
1989 Percent 1958 Percent Increase
Actual of Total Actual of Total {Decrease)
Revenues
Taxes $ 26,034,232 59.54% $ 25,490,469 59.64% 2.13%
Licenses and permits 631,768 1.44% 676,407 1.58% (6.60)%
Intergovernmental 11,658,560 26.67% 11,115,956 26.00% 4.88%
Charges for services 1,648,208 3.77% 1,507,362 3.53% 9.35%
Fines and forfeitures 4,237,830 2.83% 1,366,319 3.19% (0.40)%
Special assessments 100,171 23% 75,125 J18% 33.34%
Interest 1,086,232 2.51% 1,130,587 2.65% (3.04)%
Miscellaneous 1,315,096 3.01% 1,380,476 3.23% (4.74)%
Total revenues $43,722,187 100.00% $42,742,701 100.00%

The largest source of revenue was derived from taxes. Tax revenues are comprised of Municipal
Income Tax, Property Tax, and Gasoline Tax (recorded exclusively in the Special Revenue Funds).
Municipal income tax which comprises over 58% of the taxes collected increased in 1999 by
approximately 3.8% over 1998. The income tax collections increased in 1999 due to diligent efforts
to collect outstanding taxes receivable and to obtain filed tax returns from individuals who had
previously not reported income taxes due the City. Property taxes, which represent approximately
38% of the taxes collected in the Governmental Funds, increased only slightly in 1999, This was due
to the minimal change in property tax valuations experienced in 1999 since it was one year following
Cuyahoga County’s triennial reappraisal of real property.

License and permit revenue recorded in the Governmental Funds decreased in 1999 due to a decrease
in the number of permits issued for one and two-family building alterations and commercial and
industriai alterations. Permits issued for electrical, HVAC and plumbing work also declined in 1999.
Intergovernmental revenues are comprised of: 1) revenues received from the State for the City’s
share of sales, income, corporate franchise and public utility excise taxes; 2) revenues received from
the County for the City’s portion of estate and inheritance taxes; and 3} grants including the
Community Development Block Grant monies which are recorded in the Special Revenue Funds. In
1999, local government shared revenues and estate and inheritance tax revenues increased by 6% and
28%, respectively. These revenue streams comprise 45% of the total intergovernmental revenues
reported.

The decrease in revenues derived from fines and forfeitures was due to a decrease in the total number
of case filings in the Lakewood Municipal Court in 1999. In addition to case filings declining, the
number of traffic citations decreased in 1999 by 18%.
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In 1998, the City completed a capital project to replace the sewer lines and street surface on Clifton
and Forest Roads. This project was funded in part with special assessments charged to the property
owners on these streets. Assessments that remained uncollected were certified to the Cuyahoga
County Auditor for inclusion on the property tax duplicate with balances to be collected in fiscal
years 2000 through 2004. The City has adhered to the guidelines promuigated by GASB Statement
No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for Externai Investment
Pools.” This statement requires the City to record certain investments at fair market vaive. The
decrease in fair market value in 1999 was recorded on the operating statement as an offset to interest
income causing the decrease in revenue as compared to 1998.

The following schedule presents a summary of Governmental Fund expenditures on a GAAP basis,
including the increases (decreases) over the prior year, for the year ended December 31, 1999:

1998 GAAP BASIS EXPENDITURES
Al Governmental Funds

Percent

1999 Percent 1998 Percent Increase
Actual of Total Actual of Total {Decrease)

Expenditures

Public safety $ 14,915,340 34.54% $ 14,065,155 31.48% 6.04%
Health 3,475,385 8.05% 3,515,540 7.87% {1.14)%
Culture and recreation 4,628,933 3.77% 1,699,116 3.58% 1.86%
Community environment 5,663,246 13.11% 5,535,532 12.39% 2.31%
Sanitation 4,004,465 9.27% 3,478,201 7.79% 15.13%
Highways and sireets 1,892,215 4.38% 1,783,005 3.99% 6.13%
General govermnment 6,133,239 14.20% 5,674,800 12.70% 5.08%
Capital outlay 3,021,957 T.01% 2,783,019 8.23% 8.59%
Principal retirement 1,228,000 2.84% 4,970,390 11.13% (75.29)%
Interest and fiscal charges 1,223,751 2.83% 1,268,227 2.84% (3.51)%

Total expenditures $43,186,537 100.00% $ 44,672,985 100.00%

The 1999 increase in expenditures was primarily due to: a 3.5% pay increase given to non-union City
employees as well as union members of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal
Employees union; a 3.5% increase to union members of the International Association of Firefighters
Local #382; and a 4% increase to union members of the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #25. In
1998, the City had numerous unfilled positions within the Division of Refuse. In addition to the
increase in wages, the City filled the vacated positions within this division during 1999.
Consequently, Sanitation expenditures increased significantly in 1999 over the previous year. The
increase in Capital outlay expenditures reflects the strategic decision to fund those capital items that
have a shorter useful life with available cash. Such items included financing the acquisition of police
cars with capital leases and purchasing computer equipment and software outright. The sharp
decrease in principal refirement and interest and fiscal charges is due to the issuance of debt in 1998
to permanently retire bond anticipation notes that had been outstanding in 1998.

General Fund The General Fund GAAP basis fund balance for the year ended December 31, 1999
totaied $7,230,072. This balance reflects the City’s goal of providing excellent City services while
maintaining an adequate fund balance to insulate the City from an economic downturn or fiscal
emergency.
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Special Revenue Funds The Special Revenue Funds reflect revenues of $9.7 million dollars and net
other financing sources of $1.5 million in 1999. Expenditures and other financing uses totaled $10.7
million. In 1998, revenues and other financing sources totaled $11.1 million and expenditures and
other financing uses totaled $10.3 million.

Debt Service Fund The debt service payments for the City’s general obligation bonds are reflected in
the Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund receives a portion of property taxes to provide for the
City’s debt service payments. Special assessments collected for the retirement of debt are also
recorded in the Debt Service Fund. A list of the debt serviced by resources available in the Debt
Service Fund is reflected in Note 10 in the Notes to the Combined Financial Statements.

Capital Prgjects Funds The Capital Projects Funds account for all major capital improvement
projects of the City other than those accounted for in the Proprietary and Special Revenue Fund
Types. Approximately $2.6 million dollars was expended from the Capital Projects Funds to finance
improvements and acquisitions in 1999.

The City has developed a five-year capital improvement plan which is updated annually. Revisions to
the existing plan are made based on the following criterion: the impact the project has on the
preservation of existing City property and facilities; revitalization of Lakewood’s neighborhoods;
ability to foster economic development; and potential cost savings that will result upon project
completion.

Propriet Fund eS

Enterprise Funds The City of Lakewood operates five enterprise activities including a water system,
a sewer and wastewater system, parking facilities, a congregate living facility, and an ice rink facility.

The Divisions of Water and Wastewater Collection and Wastewater Treatment are responsible for the
pumping, distributing and treatment of potable water to all residents of the City of Lakewood in
supplies adequate to meet the fire protection, domestic and commercial needs of the community.
Operating revenues generated from the water system and the sewer and wastewater system totaled
$12.5 million in 1999, a 2.8% increase over 1998 operating revenues. This increase is primarily
attributable to an increase in the rates charged for water. The City of Cleveland increased purchased
water rates charged to the City of Lakewood by nearly 7% in 1999. A rate increase to City of
Lakewood customers was required to produce sufficient revenues to cover the Water Fund’s
operating expenses.

The Parking Facilities Fund accounts for the revenues collected through parking meters and the costs
associated with the collection of coins and maintaining the meters and guardrails located throughout
the City. Operating revenues remained consistent with the prior year’s collections.

The City became responsible for the operation of Winterhurst Ice Rink in July 1996 and established
an Enterprise Fund to account for the financial activity of the facility. The City has owned this
facility since its construction; however, prior to 1996, the Lakewood Board of Education managed
and operated the ice rink. The year end GAAP retained earnings totaled $97,756.

Internal Service Funds Since 1987, the City of Lakewood has maintained the General Insurance and
Recreational Funds for the purpose of self-funding the City’s general lability insurance program.
Both funds were financed with equity transfers from the General Fund, and it is the City’s intention to
maintain the funds equity near $700,000. Claims paid out since 1987 have been nominal.
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The City of Lakewood elected partial self-insurance for its Workers” Compensation Fund in 1991.
Since that time the City has been enrolled in the State of Ohio’s Retrospective Rating Plan for
workers® compensation. The City pays for actual claims in addition to a misimum premium for stop
loss insurance coverage which limits the City’s claim liability.

The City of Lakewood maintains an Internal Service Fund to finance the cost of employee
hospitalization and medical insurance on a cost reimbursement basis. Of three plans offered, one plan
is funded through a minimum premium agreement. According to the terms of this plan, the City is
liable for an administrative premium and actual claims up to a stop loss limit. This limit, the City’s
deposit liability, is determined annually based on claims experience. During 1999, the City’s
hospitalization costs (as reported on a budget basis) decreased by 4.5%.

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group The General Fixed Assets of the City of Lakewood are those
used in the performance of general government functions, and therefore, exclude the fixed assets of
the Enterprise Funds. Infrastructure is not recorded as an asset of the General Fixed Asset Account
Graup. The General Fixed Assets (in service} have increased from $31.3 million in 1998 to $32.9
million in 1999 primarily due to the acquisitions made through the Capital Projects Funds.

General Long-Term Obligation Account Group The General Long Term Obligation Account Group
is used to account for the City’s long-term debt obligations of its Governmental Fund Types.
Principal and interest payments for Enterprise Fund debt is accounted for within the Enterprise Funds.
Long-term debt of Governmental Fund Types decreased from $22.6 million in 1998 to $21.4 million
in 1999.

Cash Management

The City of Lakewood’s investment policy includes minimizing credit and market risks, while
maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal
depository insurance or surety bonds, collateralized, or secured by pledged assets consisting of
eligible securities with an aggregate market value equal to 110% of the excess of all public deposits
that are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other agency or
instrumentality of the Federal Government. All collateral on deposits were held by an agent of the
financial instifution’s trust department, but not in the City of Lakewood’s name.

The City’s investment policy includes the following obligations as eligible investments: obligations
of the U.S. government (including bills and notes); obligations of instrumentalities of the T.S.
Government; investment in the Ohjo State Treasurer’s Asset Reserve Fund (STAR Ohio); certificates
of deposits with eligible institutions; bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio; and repurchase
agreements with eligible institutions.

Other Information

Independent Audit State statutes require an annual audit by the State Auditors Office or by a
designated independent certified public accounting firm. The Auditor of State of the State of Ohio has
conducted the audit for the years ended 1992 through 1999. The City of Lakewood has received an
unqualified opinion from the Auditor of State for 1999 and the opinion is contained herein.
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Awards The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting fo the City of Lakewood,
Ohio for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) whose contents conform to
program standards. Such CAFRs must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Lakewood, Chio
has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last 17 consecutive years. We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgments The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished
without the dedicated service of the staff of the Department of Finance. I would like to express my
appreciation to ail staff members who have assisted and contributed in its preparation. 1 would also
like to thank the Mayor and Members of City Council, for, without their continued support, the
Department of Finance could not have continued the financial management practices required to
ensure the integrity of the City. Additionally, I express gratitude to the Auditor of State of the State
of Ohio for their efforts and professional conduct throughout the audit engagement.

Respectfully Submitted,

s

Vic 1. Nogal
Director of Finance

Susan Nobilio )
Agssistant Director of Finance
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Magistrates Thomas O’Malley and Terease Neff
Department of Law

Director of Law ....ccocoveriimnneirecinravnnnens - Kevin Spellacy

Department of Finance

Director of FIRANCE .....cccvirseeiveenseesecanrrassss .- Y vette M, Ittn*
Acting Director of FInance.......cccvemerercesererernreeesnrerns Susan Nobilio

Department of Public Works
Director of Public Works ......... S David M. McGuirk

Department of Public Safety

Assistant Director of Housing and Building................... - Lisa Thomas
Chief of Fire .. : Lawrence E. Mroz
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Department of Human Services

Director of Human Services ; Judith E. Carey
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* through November 12, 1999
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@S, STATE oF OHio Lausche Bldg

615 W Superior A
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Flcisor 12 oo

,./;-.,{,._._ CIcveluul, Chio 44113
Jiv PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone 216-787-3665

800-626-2297

Facsimile 216-787-3361
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor Madeline Cain
and Members of City Council
City of Lakewood

Cuyahoga County

12650 Detroit Road

Lakewoaod, Ohio 44107

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of Lakewood,
Cuyahoga County, Ohio, {the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, as listed in the table
of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management.
Cur responsibility is to express an opinton on these general-purpose financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Complroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Anauditalso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basls for our opinion.-

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the City of Lakewood, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, as of December 31, 1999,
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformily with generally accepted accounting principies.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 23, 2000
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
of the City, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements
and schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of addifional analysis and are not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a
whole.
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We did not audit the data included in the statistical section of this report and therefore express no opinion
thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

June 23, 2000



Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Loans

Other

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Receivables, net

Due from other funds
Pue from other governments
Prepaid items
Inventories
Restricted cash
Deferred bond issuance cosis
Fixed assets:

Land and land improvemenits

Utility plant in service

Buildings, structures, and improvements
Machinery and eguipment

Construction in progress

Less accumuiated depreciation

Fixed assets, net

Amount available for retirement of
general fong-term debt
Amaount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term obligations:
Debt
Other obligations

Total assets

See Noles to Financial Statements.

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

December 31, 1999

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types
Special Debt Capital Internal
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprisa Service
$ 724838 § 2393436 §$ 1209830 $ 2376560 & 785,931 $ 329,220
5,334,212 5,764,963 2432834
7,749,922 2,020,085 2,204,300 1,270,486
2,233 105,489 1,687,684
3,525 128,802 131,925
3,500,012
370,832 62,068 12,390
(3,662) {53,794)
8,122,987 5,687,527 2,333,102 181,925 2,804,376 12,390
607,665 ££68,823 200,900 270,087 870,931
76,321 369,927
138,617 9,485 13,745
11,853 83,286
717,036
373,215
2,659,166
52,843,120
4925688
9,166,359
4,367,756
(23,899,783)
50,082,306
$15016293 § B543661 § 4212755 $ 2559385 $60,781.894 & 3,659,129

ﬂ
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Fiduciary Totals
Fund Type Account Groups {Memorandum Only)
General General
Fixed Long-Term
Agency Assets Obligation 1889 1998

$ 369,085 s 7992709 % 10,788,707
: 13,532,009 6,537,959

13,244,793 13,171,985

1,695,416 1,854,737

314,252 254,616

3,500,012 3,498,634

445,290 354,464

(57.456) {50,882}

19,142,307 19,083,454

2,619,386 2292783

446,248 383,373

161,847 161,201

95,139 83,167

747,036 687,986

373,215 401,262

$ 2,927,726 5,586,892 5,497 827

52,843,120 52,233,965

16,226,583 21,152,281 20,775,057

13,372,774 22,539,133 21,360,024

379,084 4,746,840 3,133,495
(23,899,783} (22,238,978}

32,906,177 : 82,968,483 80,751,390

$ 1,978,231 1,978,231 1,099,474

19,871,969 19,971,969 22,078,726

10,244,948 10,244,948 10,142,181

$ 360,085 § 32,906,177 $ 32,185148 § 160,243,527 § 154,501,663
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combined Balance Sheet - Al Fund Types and Account Groups
December 31, 1999

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types
Special Debt Capitat intemnal
LIABILITIES General Ravenue Service Projects Enterprise Service
Accounts payable $ 425488 § 231,576 $ 535941 § 1,117,548
Claims payable : $ 13,612
Due to other funds 689,510 787,096 967,624 175,156
Due to other govermments 193,492 364,831
Accrued wages and benefits 1,228,538 179,104 409,810
Accrued interest 232,775
Reserve for claims 1,841,940
Capital lease cbligations -
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue 5,249,193 1,833,907 § 2,234,524 181,925 1,213,669
Debt:
Loans payable 2,901,773
Notes payable 3,445,000
Special assessment bonds payable with
govemnmental commitment
Genera! cbligation and special obligation
honds payable 15,071,240
Total debt 3,445,000 17,973,013
Total liabilities 7,786,221 3,131,683 2,234 524 5,130,490 21,486,802 1,855,552
EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
tnvestment in general fixed assets
Conlributed capital - City of Lakewood
and others 15,370,666 750,000
Retained eamings:
Unreserved 23 924 426 1,053,577
Total retained eamings 23,924 426 1,053,577
Fund balances (deficit);
Reserved for loans receivable 3,500,012
Reserved for inventories 11,853 83,288
Reserved for prepaid items 138,617 9,485
Reserved for encumbrances 520,475 640,071 638,444
Undesignated and unreserved 6,558,127 1,179,124 1,978,231 (3,209,549)
Totat fund balances (deficit) 7,230,072 5411978 1,878,231 (2,571,105)
Total equity and other credits 7,230,072 5,411,978 1,978,231 (2,571,105} 39,295,082 1,803,577
Total liabilities, equity and other
credits $ 15016203 $ 85436671 § 4212755 §$ 2550385 $60,781,894 § 3653129

Seea Notes to Financial Statements.
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Fiduciary Totals
Fund Type Account Groups {Memorandum Only)
General General
Fixed Long-Term
Agency Assets Chbligation 199¢ 1998
% 2,310,553 % 1,627,008
13.612 .
2,619,286 2,292,783
568,323 576,187
$ 10,080,509 11,897,961 11,719,081
232,775 237,337
1,841,940 2,103,328
164,439 164,439 77,297
$ 369,085 369,085 297,251
10,813,218 10,754,327
585,200 3,486,973 2,838,029
3,445,000 1,286,800
245600 245,600 308,400
21,119,400 36,190,640 38,091,693
21,950,200 43,368,213 42 524 922
369,085 32,195,148 74,188,505 72,209,519
% 32,906,177 32,905,177 31,325,843
16,120,666 16,711,303
24,978,003 22 908,548
24,978,003 22 908,548
3,500,012 3,433,550
95,139 83,167
148,102 148,207
1,798,990 1,950,741
6,506,533 5,730,785
12,049,176 11,346,450
32 908,177 86,054,022 82,292 144
$ 369,085 § 32908177 32,195,148 $ 160,243,527 $ 154,501,663
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances (Deficit) - All Governmental Fund Types
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Totals
Governmental Fund Typos {Memorandum Only)
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects 1898 1998
Revenues:
Taxes $20,884,715 $2924592 $2224,925 $ 26,034,232 $ 25490469
Licenses and permits 582,942 48,826 . 631,768 676,407
Intergovernmentat 6,408,187 4,948,933 292940 § 7.500 11,658,560 11,115,956
Charges for services 450,622 1,197,676 1,648,298 1,507,362
Fines and forfeits 1,134,970 102,860 1,237,830 1,366,319
Special assessments 807 52,593 45,771 100,171 75,125
interest 926,463 102,610 67,153 1,096,232 1,130,587
Miscellaneous 820,932 417,201 76,863 1,315,096 1,380,476
Total revenues 31,210,638 8,742,698 2,714,580 54,271 43,722,187 42742701
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 12,080,711 2,854,629 14,915,340 14,085,155
Health 1,406,487 2,068,898 3,475,385 3,515,540
Culture and recreation 1,620,581 8,352 1,628,933 1,599,116
Community environment 1,890,370 3,772,876 5,663,246 5535532
Sanitation 4,004,465 4,004 465 3,478,201
Highways and streets 1,892,215 1,892,215 1,783,005
General govemnment 5,818,987 23,588 30,664 250,000 6,133,238 5,674,800
Capital outiay 329,111 101,723 2,591,123 3,021,957, 2,783,019
Debt service: ]
Princlpal retirement 1,193,000 35,000 1,228,000 4,970,390
Interest and fiscal charges 1,214,141 9,610 1,223,751 1,268,227
Total expenditures 27,130,712 10,722,281 2,437,805 2895733 43,186,531 44672985
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures 4,079,926 (979,583) 276,775 (2,841,462) 535,656 (1,930,284)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of general obligation notes 1,286,800
Proceeds of general cbligation bonds 4281,323
Proceeds of refunded debt 9,060,000
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent {8,060,000)
Proceeds of OPWC loan 616,000
Capital lease resources 167,070 167.070 118,968
Operating transfers, in 7,000 1,532,874 762,982 1,001,000 3,303,856 2,759,709
Operating transfers, out (2,864,767) {9,522) (161.000) (268,567) {3,303,856) {2,759,709)
Net other financing sources (uses) (2,690,697 1,523,352 601,982 732,433 167,070 6,303,091
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under} expenditures and
other uses 1,389,229 543,769 878,757 (2,108,029) 702,726 4,372,807
Fund balances (deficit), January 1 5,840,843 4,868,208 1,099 474 {462 076) 11,346,450 6,973,643
Fund balances {deficit}, December 31 § 7,230,072 S$5411.578 §$1575231 § (2571,105; $ 12,048,176 § 11,346,450

Sse Notes fo Financial Statements.
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Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and pemits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Special assessments
interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Public safety
Health
Cufture and recreation
Community environment
Sanitation
Highways and sireets
General government

Capital outlay

Debt service

Totaf expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expendituras

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of general obligation notes
Other reimbursements
Operating transfers, in
Operating ransfers, out

Net other financing sources {uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses
Decertification of prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, January 1

Fund balances, December 31

See Notes to Financial Statements.

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - All Governmental Fund Types

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Generat Fund Speciat Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revisad Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 20,369,079 % 20799090 $ 430,011 § 2801401 $ 2927940 § 126,539
610,000 591,105 {18,895) 45,000 48,826 3,826
5,618,958 6,427,780 808,824 7,744,552 5,455 539 (2.285,013)
410,000 448,888 38,888 1,265,671 1,111,355 (154,318)
1,250,000 1,155,789 (94,211) 98,500 95,816 {2,684)
650,000 1,028,172 378,172 970 805 (165)
814,400 B11.247 {3,153) 209,759 256,795 47,036
29,722,435 31,262,071 1,539,636 12,165,853 9,901,076 {2,264.77T)
11,526,925 11,393,445 133,480 3,171,392 2,902,059 269,333
1,428,780 1,151,285 267,495 2,078,976 2,031,049 47,927
1,837,624 1,516,623 121,001 10,000 8,352 1,648
1,864,678 1,728,697 135,981 5,195,169 3,670,865 1,524,304
3,679,498 3,651,486 28,012
1,990,034 1,896,502 93,132
5,354,081 5,507,716 {153,635} 65,000 23,694 41,306
25,491,586 24,959,252 532,334 12,510,571 10,532,921 1,977,650
4,230,849 6,302,819 2,071,970 (344,718) (631,845) {287,127}
226,000 161,203 {64,797)
7,000 7.000 1,524 552 1,527,284 2,737
(5,089,721) (4,635,982} 453,739 (301,102) (185,781) 115,321
(5.082,721) (4,628,982) 453,739 1,449,450 1,502,711 53,261
(851.872) 1,673,837 2,525,709 1,104,732 870,866 (233,866}
26,853 26,853 45,371 45371
3,982,238 3,982,238 493,963 493,963
$ 3110366 § 5662928 § 2552562 % 1598695 § 1410200 $& (188,485
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Debt Service Fund Capitai Projects Funds Totals {Memorandum Only}
Variance Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable Revised Favorabla
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 2,207,927 § 2229167 % 21,240 $25,378,407 $25956,197 § 577,790
655,000 639,931 {15,069)
301,081 292 941 (8,140) $ 7,500 § 7,500 13,664,589 12,187,760 (1.476,829)
1,675,671 1,560,243 (115,428}
1,348,500 1,251,605 (986,895}
9,200 52,592 43392 % 45,204 45,771 1,567 54,404 99,363 44,959
50,000 67,159 17,159 700,970 1,096,136 395,166
1,024,159 1,068,042 43,883
2,568,208 2,641,859 73,651 45,204 54271 9,067 44,501,700 43,859,277 (642,423)
14,698,317 14,295 504 402,813
3,507,756 3,192,334 35422
1,647,624 1,624,975 122,649
7,060,847 5,389,562 1,660,285
3,679,498 3,651,486 28,012
1,990,034 1,896,802 93,132
37,000 30,664 6,336 © 260,000 260,000 5,716,081 5,822 074 (105,993)
3,921,341 2,907,537 1,013,604 3,921,341 2,907,537 1,013,804
3,693,939 3,693,941 (2) 44,610 44,810 3,738,549 3,738,551 (2)
3,730,935 3,724,605 6,334 4225951 3,212,147 1,013,804 45,958,047 42,428,925 3,530,122
{1,162,731) {1,082,746) 79,985 (4.180,747) (3,157.875) 1,022,871 (1,457,347) 1,430,352 2,887,699
1,125,800 1,133,085 7,285 2,345,227 2,319,200 (26,027) 3,471,027 3,452,285 (18,742)
69,677 69,677 226,000 230,880 4,880
262,982 762,982 500,000 B40,000 £40,000 2,634,534 3,137,211 502,737
(262,982) (262,982) (5.653,805)  (5,084,745) 569,060
1,388,782 1,965,744 576,862 2,022,245 2,866,218 (26,027) 677,756 1,735,691 1,057,935
226,051 832,098 656,947 {1,258,502) (261,658) 096,844 (779,581) 3,166,043 3,945,634
9,254 9,254 81,478 81,478
326,832 326,832 1,262,395 1,262,995 6,046,028 6,046,028
$ 552,883 § 1209830 § 656947 § 4 493 $ 1,006,098 § 5266437 § 9,203,549 § 4,027,112

$ 1,010,5%1
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CITY OF LAXEWOOD, CHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings -

All Proprietary Fund Types
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Benefit payments
Purchased water
Heat, light, and power
Contractual services
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Other

Totlal operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
{nterest income
Interest expense and fiscal charges

Tax revenue
Intergovernmental

Net nonoperating revenues
Net income

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired by contributed
capital - Cily of Lakewood and others

increase in retained eamnings
Retained earnings, January 1
Retained eamings, December 31

Sea Notes to Financial Stafements.

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum Only)
Internal

Enterprise Service 1998 1998
$ 13,647,736 § 2587499 §$ 16235235 $ 16,377,934
21,665 391,505 413,170 18,381
13,665,401 2,975,004 16,648,405 16,357 285
2,716,340 2,716,340 2,783,996
689,313 2,779,006 3.468,319 3,378,389
5,329,862 5,328,862 5,002,629
638,160 638,160 724,007
218,182 218182 328,451
503,024 603,024 597 412
1,724,226 1,724,226 1,644,276
566,887 68,769 1,035,656 1,145,586
12 885,954 2,847,775 15,733,769 15,604,748
783,407 131,229 914,636 792,549
48241 8,247 56,483 120,644
- {943,525) (943,525) (971,652)
1,282,377 1,282,377 1,289,542
168,842 168,842 173,026
555,935 8,247 564,182 611,560
1,336,342 139,476 1,478,818 1,404,509
590,637 590,637 500,458
1,929,978 139,476 2,069,455 2,004,967
21,994,447 914,101 22,908,548 20,903,581
$ 23924426 § 1053577 § 24,978003 § 22908,548
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, CHIO

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types
- For the year ended December 31, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Other operaling revenues
Other operating expenses

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Intergovemmental revenue
Tax revenue

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on bonds and notes
Interest and fiscal charges pald on bonds and notes
Cash paid to escrow agent for refunding
Proceeds from bonds and notes

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activiies:
Earnings on investiments
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from investments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

See Notes fo Financial Statements.

Totals
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum Only)
Internal
Enterprise Service 1999 1998
$ 13624395 $ 2,710,304 § 16,334,699  $ 17,847,200
(6,739,183) (3,176,540) (9,915,723) (9,292,548}
(3,361,611) (3,361,611) (3,577,57T0)
20,830 20,830 9,690
{853,576) {42,875) (896,551} (870,981)
2,690,855 (509.211) 2,181,644 4,115,791
168,842 168,842 173,026
1,284,822 1,284,822 1,273,615
1,453,664 1,453 664 1,446,641
{1,437,658) {1,437.658) {2,903,436)
(878,087) (878,087) (1,172,320}
(899,852) {899,852) (954,981}
(5,631,000)
6,995,000
{3,215,597) {3,215,597) (3,666,737)
59,200 20,306 79,506 105,352
(5,764,963) (2,441,992} (8,206,955) {4,074,095)
2,948,106 1,532,807 4,481,013 3,996,583
(2,757.657) {888,779) {3,646,436) 27,840
(1,828,735) (1,397,590) (3,226,725) 1,923,535
3,335,702 1,727,219 5,062,921 3,139,386
$ 1506967 $ 329,229 § 1836196 § 5062921
Page 1 of 2
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcite operating income to net cash
provided by operaling activilies:

Depreclation
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in due from olther funds
({Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase {decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in claims payable
Increase in accrued wages and benefits payable
increase (decrease) in reserve for claims

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:
Per the balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash flows

Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities:

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Debt service on outstanding generat obligation bonds
funded by the Debt Service Fund
Fixed assets contributed by the City or others
Fixed assets acquired by payments made by others
on behalf of the City

Total non-cash capital and related financing activities

Non-cash investing activities:
Net change in the fair value of investments

Total non-cash investing aclivities
Total non-cash transactions

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Totals

Proprietary Fund Types {(Memorandum Only)
Internat
Enterprise Service 1999 1998
$ 783407 $ 131,229 914636 % 792 549
1,724,226 1724226 1,644,276
2,812 2,812 (7,163}
(26,331) (26,331) (31,782)
2,155 2,155 (1,974)
120 {268,700) {268,580) 1,493,228
751) 751) 8,160
31,063 31,063 (148,405)
160,544 (123,213} 37,931 305,764
N 13,612 13,612 (30,000}
12,859 12,859 33,384
(261,388) (261,388) 57,754
1,907,448 (640,440} 1,267,008 3,323,242
$ 2!690@55 $ !509,211! 2,181,644 § 4115791
$ 788,931 $ 325228 1,116,160 $ 4,374,835
717,036 717,036 687,986
$ 1505967 & 320229 1,836,196 § 5,062,921
$ 185,000
18,125
$ 742 167 742 167 2,222 029
742,167 742 167 2,426,154
$ (9,158} (9,158} 1,671
_{9,158) {9,158) 1,671
$ 742167 $ _ (9,158) 723,008 $ 2427825
Page2 of2
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Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovermmentat
Charges for services
Special assessments
interest
Miscelianeous

Total revenues

Expenses:

Curment:
Heatth
Culture and recreation
Community environment
Sanitation
Highways and streets
Geperal government

Capital outlay

Debt service

Total expenses

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenses

Other financing sources (uses):
QOther reimbursemeants

Qperating transfers, in
Operating transfers, out

Net other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficlency) of revenues and other
sources over {under} expenses and
other uses

Deceriification of prior year encumbrances

Fund equity, Janvary 1

Fund equity, December 31

See Noles to Financial Statements.

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - All Proprietary Fund Types
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Enterprise Funds Internal Service Funds
Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actuai (Unfavorable) Budget Actuat {Unfavarable)
$ 1,272580 % 1284822 & 12,242
173,534 168,842 (4,692)
13,669,945 13,624,126 (45,519)
1,000 1,532 532
45,000 48,241 3241 & 22000 $§ 20306 % {1,634)
8,100 8,100 391,508 391,506
15,170,159 15,135,663 (34,456) 22,000 411,812 389,812
10,820 7,810 3,010
907,922 793,400 114,522 10,000 10,000
50,000 42 974 7,028
10,704,959 9,968,769 736,190
259,314 237,312 22,002
3,542,759 3,081,623 461,136
2,401,670 824,336 1,577,334
1,767,841 1,771,085 (3,244)
16,052 626 13,602,812 2,449 B4 3,602,759 3,124 557 478,162
(882,467) 1,532,851 2,415318 (3,580,759)  (2,712,785) 867,874
1,500 883 {617} 110,000 117,580 7,580
3,410,124 2,201,209 (1,208,815)
(390,853) {253,735) 137,118
{389,353) (252,852) 136,501 3,520,124 2,318,799 (1,201,325)
{1,271,820) 1,279,998 2,551,818 (60,635) (393,986) (333,351)
371,596 371,598
4,330,228 4,330,228 3,131,108 3,131,108
$ 3058408 $5981823 § 2923415 $ 3070473 § 2737122 $ (333,351
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Totals {(Memorandum Only)

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1272580 $ 1284822 § 12242
173,534 168,842 (4,692)
13,669,945 13,624,126 (45,819}
1,000 1,532 532
67,000 63,547 1,547
8,100 389,606 391,508
15,192,159 15,547,475 355,316
10,920 7,910 3,010
917,822 793,400 124,522
50,000 42,974 7,026
10,704,959 9,968,769 736,190
259,314 237,312 22,002
3,542,759 3,081,623 461,136
2,401,670 824,336 1,577,334
1,767,841 1,771,085 {3,244}

19,655,385 18,727,409 2927978

(4,463,226) (1,179,934) 3,283,292

111,500 118,473 6.973
3,410,124 2,201,209 (1,208,915)
{390,853} (253,735} 137,118

3,130,771 2,065,947 (1,064,824)

(1,332,455) 886,013  2,218458
371,596 371,596

7,461,336 7,461,336

% 6128881 § 8,718,945 § 2,590,084
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i.

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

B.

The City of Lakewood (the City) was incorporated and chartered in 1911,

The City operates under an elected Mayor/Council administrative/legislative form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety
{police and fire protection), sanitation, planning and zoning, public improvements, culture
and recreation, municipal court and general administration services. In addition, the City
owns and operates several enterprise activities, including a water system, a Jocal sewer
system, an ice rink facility, and parking facilities.

To define the governmental entity, the City adopted the provisions of Govemnmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity."

The financial statements present the primary government and component units and
organizations for which the City (primary government) is financially accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the level of accountability that exists if a primary government
appoints a voting majority of the component unit's board and is either able to impose its will
on that component unit or there is potential for the component unit to provide a financial
benefit to, or impose a financial burden on, the primary government. Based upon the
foregoing criteria, these financial statements do not include any component units.

The following entities, which are associated with the City, are excluded from the
accompanying financial statements:

Lakewood City School District;
Lakewood. Public Library; and,
Lakewood Hospital Association.

Basis of Presentation

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governments.

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds and account groups.
The various funds and account groups are reported by type in the general purpose financial
statements. Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only" columns in the general purpose
financial statements are presented only to facilitate analysis. The total amounts do not
present changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Interfund eliminations are not made in the aggregation of this information. The
information is not comparable to a consolidation.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continved
December 31, 1999

Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Continued:

The City uses the following fund categories, fund types, and account groups:

Governmental Funds

General Fund - This fund, which is the major operating fund of the City, is used to
account for all revenues and expenditures except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for revenue from specific
sources (other than major capital projects) which require separate accounting because of
legal restrictions.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term obligations principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds) and to account for the financing of public improvements
or services deemed to benefit specific properties on which assessments are levied.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for operations that provide services
which are financed primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic determination
of revenues, expenses, and net income is appropriate for public policy, management
control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - These funds are used to account for the goods or services
provided to certain City departments and funds or to other governments on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds.

Account @ oups

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is used to present the general
fixed assets utilized in general government operations of the City, exclusive of those
used in the Proprietary Funds.
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Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies, Continued:

C.

D.

E.

General Long-Term Obligation Account Group - This account group is used to account
for all long-term obligations of the City, except for those accounted for in the Proprietary

Funds.

Basis of Accounting

All financial transactions for Governmental and Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.
Revenues accrued at the end of the year primarily consist of reimbursements from other
governments for grant expenditures, income taxes receivable arising from payroll tax
withholdings for individuals in December, and investment income. Governmental fund
expenditures are accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, with the exception of
accumulated unpaid employee compensation, which is not payable from expendable
financial resources, and general long-term obligations principal and interest, which are
recorded when due. Financial transactions for Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earmed and expenses are
recognized in the peried incurred.

Under the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 20, the City has elected to apply all GASB
pronouncements and FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement, to its proprietary activities.

‘Measurement Focus

Governmental Funds are accounted for on a current financial resources measurement focus.
Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. The
operating statements present sources (revenues and other financing sources) available to pay
liabilities in existence at the end of the period. All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a2
flow of economic resources measurement focus.

Budgetary Accounting

An annual appropriations budget is adopted by City Council for the Governmental Funds and
Proprietary Funds. Modifications to the original budget are approved by City Council
throughout the year, During 1999, supplemental budgetary appropriations were approved
totaling $1,085,000. Budget amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements
represent final amended amounts.

42



CITY OF LAKEWOOQD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

1. Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Continued:

The City maintains budgetary control by not permitting expenditures/expenses plus other
financing uses to exceed appropriations for each fund (legal level) without the approval of
City Council. The Director of Finance is authorized to allocate appropriations among
departments within any fund. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. Encumbered
appropriations are carried forward into the next year.

The City's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis which differs from
generally accepted accountting principles (GAAP basis). The major differences between the
budget basis and the GAAP basis are that:

1.  Revenues are recorded when received in cash for budget purposes as Opposed to when
susceptible to accrual for GAAP purposes,

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash or encumbered for budget purposes as
opposed to when the liability is incurred for GAAP purposes.

3. Proceeds from and principal payment on short-term note obligations are reported on the
operating statement for budget basis reporting rather than on the balance sheet for
GAAP purposes.

An analysis of the difference in excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other uses for Governmental Funds and increase in retained earnings for
Proprietary Funds for the year ended December 31, 1999 as determined under the GAAP
basis and budget basis follows:

Govermnmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Fund Funds Fung Funds
GAAP Basis $ 1,389,229 $ 543,769 $ 878,757 $ (2,109,029)
Increase (decrease)
Accrued receivables at December 31, 1989,
not recognized in the 1999 budget {2,891,925) (626,590) (98,579} 2,163,785
Accrued receivables at December 31, 1998,
recognized in the 1999 budget 2,776,287 432,026 102,820
Net impact of encurnbrances on budget
basis expenditures and other
adjustments (284,101) 383,881 (514,887)
Accrued liabilities at Decemnber 31, 1989,
not recognized in the 1999 budget 1,988,341 327,712 503,488
Accrued fiabilities at December 31, 1998,
recognized in the 1999 budget (1,303,994) (189,932) (305,015)
Budget basis for budgeted funds $ 1673837 % 870866 $ 882998 $ (261658)
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Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies, Continued:

Proprietary Fund Types
Internal
Enterprise Service
. Funds Funds
GAAP Basis $ 1,929,979 b 139,476
Increase (decrease)
Accrued receivables at December 31, 19989,
not recognized in the 193¢ budget (1,619,751) (271,932)
Accrued receivables at December 31, 1998,
recognized in the 1999 budget 1,644,658 15,292
Net impact of encumbrances on budget
basis expenses and other adjustments 269,178 94,918
Change in fund debt (624,362)
Change in fixed assets (307,144)
Accrued liabilities at December 31, 1999,
not recognized in the 1999 budget 1,346,531 25,867
Accrued liabilities at December 31, 1998,
recognized in the 1999 budget (1,359,138) (397.607)
Budget basis for budgeted funds 5 1275993 $ (393,986)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as highly liquid investments with maturities of three
months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents on the Combined and Combining
Statements of Cash Fiows - All Proprietary Fund types inciudes restricted cash.

Investments

The City has applied the provisions stated in GASB Statement No. 31 to value investments.
Accordingly, the City has reported money market investments that have a2 remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less at amortized cost. Money market
investments that do not meet the criteria for reporting at amortized cost have been recorded
on the financial statements at fair value.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets include land and land improvements, utility plant in service, buildings,
structures and improvements, and machinery and equipment owned by the City.
Infrastructure pertaining to Governmental Fund type activities, including streets, bridges,
and sidewalks, is not capitalized by the City.
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1.  Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Continued:

Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are reported as
expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and capitalized in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. Property and equipment acquired by Proprietary Funds are
reported in the respective funds. The City's policy is to capitalize expense (including
interest, if applicable) on Proprietary Funds' construction projects until substantially
completed.

All purchased fixed assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
cost information is not available. All donated fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value on the date received.

I.  Depreciation

Depreciation is not recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Depreciation,
including amortization of amounts for capitalized leases, is charged to operations of
Proprietary Funds over the fixed assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The following useful lives are used to calculate depreciation:

Utility plant in service 20-80 years
Buildings, structures, and improvements 20-80 years
Machinery and equipment .5-15 years

J.  Encumbrances

As part of formal budgetary controt over all funds, purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for expenditures are recorded as encumbrances to reserve the applicable
portion of the appropriation. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not represent expenditures or
liabilities of the City.

K. Grants and Other Intercovernmental Revenues

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement programs are recorded
as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs.  Federal
reimbursemeni-type grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when
the related expenditures (expenses) are incurred. Amounts received in excess of
expenditures (expenses) are reflected as deferred revenue.

45



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Description of Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Continued:

L.

Contributed Capital - Enterprige Funds

Contributed capital for the Enterprise Funds was estimated by assuming that as of January 1,
1981 the net fixed assets of such funds were acquired first through outstanding debt (less
restricted assets) and then through capital contributions of the City or others. Contributed
capital in the Enterprise Funds is reduced annually by the amount of depreciation applicable
to the fixed assets acquired through such capital contributions.

Interfund Transactions

Puring the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds,
including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and
service debt. Such transactions are generally reflected as operating transfers in the
accompanying financial statements.

Inventories

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Governmental Funds account
for inventories on the consumption method. Expenditures are recognized when inventory is
used.

Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial
statements, Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform with 1999 classifications.

Compensated Absences

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 16,
the City has accrued a liability for sick leave, vacation and/or severance for those employees
who are currently eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees who
are expected to become eligible to receive such payments. The current obligations of all
funds and the long-term obligations of Proprietary Funds are reported in the respective
funds. For Governmentai Fuand types, the liability not currently due and payable at year end
is reported in the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group.
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Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Equity in Pooied Cash and Investments:

The City maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds except for the Municipal Court,
which maintains its own cash and investments in segregated accounts. Each fund whose monies
are included in the cash and investment pool has equity therein. Each fund’s portion of total cash
and investments is summarized by fund type on the combined balance sheet as “cash and cash
equivalents” or “investments” except for restricted cash and investments of the Water Enterprise
Fund which consist of debt proceeds whose use is restricted to construction projects. The amount
of restricted assets is displayed on the combined balance sheet as “restricted cash.” Amounts
reported as cash and cash equivalents and investments principally consist of bank balances;
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and U.S. instrumentalities; and investments in the
State Treasurer Asset Reserve Fund (STAR Ohio).

A,

Deposits

Ohio Law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loans associations
located in Ohio. The City’s policy is to place deposits with federally insured banks having
offices within the City. Any public depository in which the City places deposits must pledge
as collateral eligible securities of aggregate market value equal to 110% of the excess of
deposits not insured by the Federal Deposit Insnrance Corporation.

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$1,199,084. The actual bank balances totaled $1,487,328. The difference represents
outstanding warrants payable and normal reconciling items. Of the bank balance, $203,216
was fully insured by federal depository insurance. The remainder was uninsured but
collateralized by a collateral pool held by an agent of the depository bank in the name of the
respective depository bank which pledges a pool of collateral against all public deposits it
holds.

Investments

The City’s investment policies are governed by State statutes and City ordinances which
authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, Agencies and
Instrumentalities; bonds and other State of Ohio obligations; certificates of deposit; U.S.
Govemment Money Market Mutual Funds, repurchase transactions, and the State Treasurer
Asset Reserve Fund (STAR Ohio). STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State
Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for
investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investinent company,
but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investiment Company Act of
1940.
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Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
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Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments, Continued:

The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.” This statement established
accounting and reporting guidelines for government investments and investment pools.

Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the
investment could be sold for on December 31, 1999. Investments in Mutual Funds are
valued at the fund’s current share price on December 31, 1999. Certain U.S. Government
securities (those that are not money market investments as defined by GASB Statement 31)
have been recorded at fair value which reflects the quoted market price for those investments
on December 31, 1999. Money market investments (which include U.S. Treasury securities
that had a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less} have been recorded
on the financial statements at amortized cost.

Investments are classified as to credit risk by three categories: 1) Insured or registered, or
securities held by the City or its agent in the City’s name 2) Uninsured and unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name 3)
Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent, but not in the City’s name.

)
Uninsured and
Unregistered, with

Securities Held by the
Counterparty's Trust
Department or Agent Carrying Fair
Type of Investiment in the City's Name Value Value
U.S. Government Securities $13,532,009 $13,532,009 %13,549,860
Repurchase Agreements 786,000 786,000 786,000
Investments in Mutual Funds 2,339,267 2,339,267
State Treasurer Asset
Reserve Fund (STAR Ohio) 4,385 394 4,385,394

$21,042,670  $21,060,521

The amounts invested with STAR Ohio and mutual funds are not classified by risk categories
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form as
defined by GASB Statement No. 3. '
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A summary of changes in General Fixed Assets follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, Additions/ Deletions/ December 31,
1999 Transfer in Transfers Qut 1899
Land and fand improvements $ 2838661 $ 89,065 $ 2,927,726
Buildings, structures, and improvements 15,999,250 227,343 16,226,593
Machinery and equipment 12,235,979 1,366,962 $ 230,167 13,372,774
Construction in progress 251,953 315,968 188,837 379,084
$ 31,325,843 $ 1,999,338 $ 419,004 $ 32,906,177
A summary of changes in Enterprise Fund fixed assets follows:
Balance Balance
January 1, Additions/ Deletions/ December 31,
1998 Transfer In Transfers Qut 1698
Land and land improvements $ 2659168 $ 2,659,166
Utility plant in service 52,233,965 $ 609,155 52,843,120
Buildings, structures, and improvements 4,775,807 149,881 4,925,688
Machinery and equipment 9,124,045 111,439 5 69,125 9,166,359
Construction in progress 2,881,542 2,146,018 £59,804 4,367,756
$ 71,674,525 $ 3015483 $ 728,929 $ 73,962,089
Less: Accumulated depreciation (22,238,978) {1,724,2285) {63,421} (23,899,783)
$ 49,435,547 $ 1,202,267 $ 665,508 $ 50,062,306

4.  Changes jn Contributed Capital:

A summary of changes in Proprietary Funds’ contributed capital is as follows:

Intermal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds
Balance January 1, 1999 $ 15,961,303 L5 750,000
Depreciation on fixed assets acquired by contributed capital (590.637)
Balance Decemnber 31, 195% $ 15,370,668 $ 750,000
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5. Interfund Receivable and Pavable Balances:

The following balances at December 31, 1999 represent individual fund interfund receivables and

payables:
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 607 665 $ 689,510
Special Revenue Funds:
Streets and Highways 308,544
Office on Aging Grant 275,424
Community Development Block Grant 163,390
Emergency Shelter - - 21,013
Lakewood Hospital 3,118
Children Who Witness Violence Grant 1,360
Byrne Memorial Grant 8,247
Total Special Revenue Funds 787,096
Debt Service Fund 669,823
Capital Projects Funds: )
Permanent Capital Improvement 967,624
Bowntown Developrnent 200,900
Total Capital Projects Funds 200,900 g67,624
Enterprise Funds:
Water 115,367
Sewer and Wastewater 55,308
Parking Facilities 270,067 1,439
Congregational Living Facility 2,003
Winterhiurst lce Rink 1,038
Total Entesprise Funds 270,067 175,156
internal Sesrvice Funds:
Hospitalization 269,904
Workers Compensation 601,027
Total intermnal Service Funds 870,931
TOTAL $ 2619386 $ 2619386
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Pension and Retirement Plans:

The City applies GASB No. 27 “Accounting for Pensions of State and Local Government
Employees,” which establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of
pension expense and related liabilities, assets and note disclosures in the financial reports of state
and local government employers.

The City contributes to two cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans: (1) Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), and (2) Police and Firemen’s Disability and
Pension Fund of Ohio (P&FDPF). Both plans provide retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Contribution
requirements and benefit provisions are established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified
in the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is avajlable upon
written request addressed to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Chio 43215-4642 or by calling
(614) 466-2085.

P&FDPF issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial
information and required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by
writing to 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164. The funding policy for the above
plans is as follows: ‘

PERS:  During 1999, PERS employees contributed §.5% of their salary to the plan and the City
contributed 13.55% of covered payrolls to the plan. The contributions to PERS for the years
ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $3,366,794, $3,214,223, and $3,109,823
respectively. The City paid 76% of the total 1999 contribution in 1999 and accrued the balance in
the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group. Coniributions for 1998 and 1997 were paid
in full.

P&FDPF: During 1999, P&FDPF employees contributed 10% of their annual salary to the plan,
and the City contributed 19.5% of gross salary for policemen and 24% for firemen. The
contributions to P&FDPF for the years ending December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were
$2,593,227, $2,522,068, and $2,402,935, respectively. The City paid 77% of the total 1999
contribution in 1999 and accrued the balance in the General Long-Term Obligation Account
Group. Contributions for 1998 and 1997 were paid in full.

In addition to current contributions, the City pays installments on the accrued liability incurred
when the State of Ohio established the statewide pension system for police and firefighters in
1967. As of December 31, 1999, the unfunded liability of the City was $7,648,750, payable in
semiannual payments through the year 2035. The liability is reported in the General Long-Term
Obligation Account Group.
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Cther Postemplovment Benefits:

Ohio Law provides that the City fund postretirement health care benefits through employer
contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) of Ohio and the Police and
Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (P&FDPF) of Ohio.

PERS: The Public Employees Retirement System provides postretirement health care coverage to
age and service retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care
coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The Ohio Revised
Code provides the statutory authority requiring the City to fund postretirement health care through
its contributions to PERS. A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is set aside for the
funding of postretirement health care. The 1999 employer contributions rate was 13.55% of
covered payroll; 4.2% was the portion that was used to fund health care for the year 1999.

The postemployment benefits are financed through employer contributions and investment
earnings thereon. The contributions allocated to retirant health and Medicare, along with
investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health care provisions, are
expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely. During 1999, other postemployment
benefit expenditures made by PERS totaled $523,599,349. As of December 31, 1999, the
unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9,870,285,641. The
nummber of benefit recipients eligible for other postemployment benefits was 118,062.

The City's actual contribution to fund postemployment benefits for 1999 was $641,285.

P&FDPF: P&FDPF operates under the authority of the Ohio Revised Code and provides
postretirement health care coverage to any person who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly
benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. As of December 31, 1998,
11,424 policemen and 9,186 firemen were eligible to receive health care benefits.

Ohio Law provides that health care costs paid from the funds of the P&FDPF shall be included in
the employer's contribution rate. The health care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you-go
basis. The Board-defined allocation used to pay retiree health care expenses for 1998, 1999, and
2000 is 6.5%, 7.0%, and 7.25%, respectively, of covered payroll. In addition, since July 1, 1992
most retirees have been required to contribute a portion of the cost of their health care through a
deduction from their monthly benefit payment.  P&FDPF's total health care expenses for the
year ended December 31, 1998, were $78,596,790.

For 1999, actual City contributions to P&FDPF used to pay postemployment benefits were
$311,237 for police and $264,573 for firemen.
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Accumulated Unpaid Emplovee Benefits and Qvertime:

City employees generally earn vacation and sick leave ranging from two to five weeks and 14 to
30 days per year, respectively, based on length of service. Vacation and sick leave accumulate on
a monthly basis and are fully vested when earned. Accumulated vacation leave and accumulated
sick days cannot exceed 50 or 120 days, respectively, at the end of any year. However, employees
convert to cash, on a three-to-one basis, sick days accumulated in excess of 120 days. Twenty-
five percent of unused sick leave plus any accumulated vacation leave is paid at retirement or
death.

For Governmental Fund types, the liability for accumulated vacation totaled $966,079 at
December 31, 1999, This amount has been recorded in the General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group since the timing of future payments is not determinable. For Enterprise Funds,
accumulated vacation leave totaled $134,882. This amount has been recorded as a liability in the
respective Enterprise Funds.

The City has recorded an estimated liability of $87,331 for accumulated sick leave benefits
payable at December 31, 1999 in accordance with GASB No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated
Absences.” This liability has been recorded in the General Long-Term Obligation Account
Group. The estimated liability for Enterprise Funds totaled $3,589 at December 31, 1999. This
amount has been recorded in the respective Enterprise Funds.

In addition, employees of the City accumulate deferred compensation for a portion of overtime
hours worked based upon time and a haif for police and fire department employees and straight
time for other employees. The liabilities for overtime, at current pay rates and converted to
straight time hours, at December 31, 1999 follow:

Depariment Hours Amount
Police 5,483 $ 148,341
Fire 6,416 115,842
Other - Governmental Fund Types 3,410 60,683
Other - Proprietary Fund Types 2,131 A8 257

18,420 $ 403,123

Employees are entitled to receive payments for their accumulated hours upon retirement or other
termination from the City's payroil. Police and fire department employees can receive, on a
yearly basis, payments for portions of overtime accumulated upon written request to the
respective department Chief. The accumulated overtime is recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligation Account Group since the timing of future payments is not determinable. Proprietary
Fund type amounts are recorded as liabilities in the respective Enterprise Funds.
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Accumulated Unpaid Emplovee Benefits and Overtime, Continued:

Fire Department personnel required to work a holiday shall be granted, at a later time, an eight-
hour off-duty period. Members hired after Januvary 1, 1989 must take holiday time off during the
year in which it is earned. Members hired before January 1, 1989 may accumulate up to 13 24-
hour holidays which would be paid at their hourly rate at the time of retirement or termination.
Members have the option of up to 96 holiday hours in lieu of time off. Payment for these hours is
received in January of the following year.

Leases
A. Capital Leases

The City leases police vehicles and copier equipment through capital leasing arrangements.
The assets and obligations of such agreements are recorded in the General Fixed Asset
Account Group and the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group, respectively. The
lease contracts contain annual one-year renewal options that can be exercised by the City if
sufficient funds are appropriated by City Council. The following is a schedule of the future
minimum lease payments for capital leases and the present value of net minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 1999:

Amounts

2000 L] 97,462
2001 55,792
2002 9,582
2003 . 9,582
2004 9,582
Total minimum tease payments 182,000
Less: Amount representing interest {17.561)
Presant value of net minimum lease

payments $ 164439

Operating Leases

In 1997, the City renegotiated its iease agreement with the Lakewood Hospital Association
(LHA) for its use of real and personal property owned by the City for the purpose of
operating a hospital. The cost of leased assets and accumulated depreciation totaled
$152,745,000 and $91,000,000, respectively, as of December 31, 1999. Under the terms of
the lease, the City will receive amounts ranging from 31 million to $1.225 million
commencing in 1997 and continuing through 2626. Upon expiration of the lease term or the
termination of this lease, LHA will surrender the leased property to the City.
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10. Debt and Long-Term Obligations:

Debt and long-term obligations of the City as of December 31, 1999 follow:

Capital Projects Func:
General Obligation Notes Payable:

3.25% Motorized equipment note

3.25% Motorized eguiprment note

3.25% Motorized equipment note

3.25% Police communications equipment note
3.25% Tree planting note

3.25% Street improvement note

3.60% Street improvement note

3.25% Building and facilities note

3.25% Recreation facilities note

3.25% Fire equipment note

Total Capital Projects Fund Debt

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Additions Deletions 1969
s 481,800 L] 481,800 $ 481,800 3 481,800
805,000 844,600 805,000 644,000
278,540 278,540
536,200 536,200
50,000 50,000
141,000 141,000
575,000 575,000
600,460 600,460
S0,000 90,000
48,000 48,000
$ 1286800 $ 3445000 §$ 1,286,800 $ 3,445,000

Capital Projects Fund debt is entirely comprised of notes payable with $3,445,000 of principal
and $107,995 of interest maturing during 2000.

General Long-Term Obligation Account Group:

Special Assessment Bonds Payable with
Governmental Commitment:

Various rates, street improvement bonds due
through 2002

Various rates, breakwall improvement bonds
due through 2003

Total Special Assessment Bonds Payable
with Government Commitment

General Obligation and Refunding Bonds
Payabile:

11.75% Recreational facifities bonds due
through 2000

Various rates, various purpose general
obligation bonds due through 2000

Various rates, refunding general obligation
bonds due through 2012

Various rates, various purpose general
obligation bonds due through 2015

Various rates, various purpose general
obligation bonds due through 2017

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable

Total Debt in the General Long-Term
QObligation Account Group

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,

1989 Additions Deletions 1999
$ 118,400 $ 27,800 $ 90,600
180,000 35,000 155,000
$ 308,400 $ o] $ 62,800 % 245,600
$ 320,000 s 160,000 % 160,000
28,000 14,000 14,000
8,565,000 440,000 8,125,000
9,375,000 340,000 9,035,000
3,865,800 180,400 3,785,400
$ 22253800 § 0 % 1,134,400 $ 21,119,400
$ 22562200 % 0 % 1,197,200 $ 212365000

55



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO _
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

10. Debt and Long-Term Obligations, Continued:

Other Long-Term Obligations:

Accrued wages and benefits {(accumulated
unpaid employee benefits}

Accumulated overtime

Capital lease abligations

Loans payable

Total Other Long-Term Obligations in the
General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group

Total Debt and Other Long-Term
Obligations

Enterprise Funds

Generat Obligation and Refunding Bonds
Payable:

Various rates, various purpose general
obligation bonds due through 2000

9.00% Water main mortgage revenue bonds due
through 2011

Various rates, refunding general obligations
bornids due through 2011

Various rates, sewer construction bonds due
through 2015

Various rates, water main mortgage revenue
bonids due through 2015

Various rates, recreation facility general
obligation bonds due through 2017

Total Bonds Payable in the
Enterprise Funds

Other Long-Term Obtigations:
L oans payable

Total Other Long-Term Obligations in the
Enterprise Funds

Total Debt and Other Long-Term Obligations
in the Enterprise Funds

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Addilions Deletions 1999
$ 9729510 $ 1028572 § 1,03243% § 9,725643
335,374 19,492 354,866
77297 167,070 79,928 164,439
616,000 30,800 585,200
$ 10,758,181 5 1.215134 $ 1,143,167 $ 10,830,148
$ 33.320,381 $ 1215134 $ 2,340,367 $ 32,195,148
Balance Balance
January 1, December 21,
1999 Additions Deletions 1999
$ 252,000 3 126,000 S 126,000
3,650,000 185,000 3,455,000
5,325,600 315,000 5,010,000
2,725,000 100,000 2,625,000
2,995,000 70,000 2,925,000
1,285,800 1,800 1,294,000
$ 16,242,800 $ 0 $ 797,800 $ 15,445,000
$ 2222029 § 742,167 $ 62,423 $ 2,901,773
$ 2222029 $ 742,167 $ 62,423 $ 2901773
$ 18,464,820 $ 742,167 $ 860,223 $ 18,348,773
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CITY OF LAKEWQOQOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Debt and Long-Term Obligations, Continued:

Notes payable represent unvoted general obligation bond anticipation notes payable from ad
valorem property taxes. Further security is provided on the general obligation bond anticipation
notes by a pledge of the full fzith, credit, and general revenues of the City for the re-payment of
debt. The notes payable are issued by the City with one year maturity. Ohio law permits the
issuance and renewal of bond anticipation notes such that the notes may remain outstanding for
five years consecutively before such notes must be retired either from available funds of the City
or from the proceeds of bonds issued to redeem the anticipation notes.

Special assessment projects are funded through the issvance of bonds and notes payable. Bonds
and notes issued are recognized as general long-term obligations of the City and retired with
assessments levied against property owners and/or general revenues of the City based on the
improvements/benefit to the respective parties. Assessments will be received over periods ranging
from five to ten years, with interest equal to the interest on the bonds and notes issued to finance
the improvements.

A summary of the City’s future debt service requirements for tax supported general obligation
and special assessment bonds; Enterprise Fund general obhgatlon and revenue bonds; and final
Ioans payable as of December 31, 1999 follows:

Enterprise Funds Debt Special Assessment Bonds Other General Obligations

Principal Interest Principal interest Principal Interest
2000 ] 895223 § 823746 $ 64,400 $ 11,583 % 1263600 % 1,098,124
2001 809,223 781,299 70,200 8,690 1,238,800 1,032,833
2002 839,223 744,911 71,000 5447 1,308,000 981,111
2003 905,623 706,561 40,000 2,100 1,262,600 921,860
2004 945,623 664,658 1,337,600 864,977

2005 and

thereafter 12,236,125 3,982,927 15,294,000 4,778,355

$§ 16631040 $ 7,704,103 § 245600 § 27,820 § 21704600 § 9,678,260

The bonds payable are comprised of unvoted general obligation bonds of the City payable from
ad valorem property taxes and special obligation bonds. The security for payment of the general
obligation bonds of the City is the requirement of the levy by the City of ad valorem property
taxes within the ten-miil limitation imposed by Ohio law. Additionally, the City has pledged its
fuil faith and credit as security for the general obligation bonds payable. General obligation
bonds issued to provide funds for additions or improvements to the fixed assets of the Enterprise
Funds are general obligations of the City; however, the City’s practice has been to service the
debt with the revenues of the respective Enterprise Funds.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

10. Debt and Long-Term Obligations, Continued:

The City has outstanding 1991 and 1995 water mortgage revenue bonds. The debt service on the
water mortgage revenue bonds is payable from the net revenues derived by the City from the
operation of the water distribution system.

During 1997, the City entered into an agreement with the Qhio Public Works Commission for a
street construction Joan. The construction project was completed in 1998 and the ioan amount
totaled $616,000. The balance of $585,200 remaining at December 31, 1999 has been recorded as
a liability in the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group and is payable from monies
collected from ad valorem property taxes.

The City also entered into agreements with the Ohio Public Works Commission securing loans for
water main and sewer separation construction projects. The loans will be repaid with revenues of
the Water and Sewer and Wastewater Funds. At December 31, 1999, the Ohio Public Works
Commission had loaned the City $2,901,773 which has been recorded as a liability in the Water
and Sewer and Wastewater Funds. Of the total liability recorded, $1,186,040 represented loans
that had been finalized at December 31, 1999. The City has received a repayment schedule for
this amount and therefore included only those payments in the table illustrating the City’s future
debt service requirements. The balance of $1,715,733 represents construction advances applied to
current water main and sewer separation construction projects. These projects will be completed
in 2000 at an estimated total cost of $2,762,000.

On March i, 1998, the City issued $5,695,000 in general obiigation bonds to advance refund
$5,195,000 of outstanding 1992 Samitary Sewer System special obligation bonds. The net
proceeds of $5,631,000 (after payment of issuance costs) were used to purchase direct obligations
of the U.S. government. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent. The securities and fixed earnings from the securities are sufficient to provide for all future
debt service payments on the 1992 bonds. As a result, the 1992 bonds are considered to be
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Sewer and Wastewater
Fund. Asof December 31, 1999, $4,685,000 of the defeased debt remained outstanding.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt. The unamortized balance of the deferred loss totaled $373,760 at
December 31, 1999. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a
deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to operations through the year 2011 using the
straight-line method. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service
payments by $223,590 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of
the old and new debt service payments) of $155,524.
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CITY OF LAKEWOQD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

10. Debt and Long-Term Obligations, Continued:

11.

On March 1, 1998, the City issued $9,060,000 in general obligation bonds to advance refund
$8,170,000 of outstanding 1992 various purpose general obligation bonds. The net proceeds of
$8,960,000 (after payment of issuance costs) were used to purchase direct obligations of the U.S.
government. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent. The
securities and fixed earnings from the securities are sufficient to provide for all future debt service
payments on the 1992 bonds. As a result, the 1992 bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligation Account
Group. As of December 31, 1999, $7,515,000 of the defeased debt remained outstanding.

The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments by $313,087
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt
service payments) of $213,491.

Legal Debt Margin: Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the City at
December 31, 1999 had the capacity to issue $15,689,203 of additional unvoted general
obligation debt.

Conduit Debt Obligations: In 1983 and 1989, the City issued Hospital Improvement Revenue
Bonds for the purpose of providing funds to pay costs of Lakewood Hospital facility
improvements. In 1989, the City also issued Hospital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds to
advance refund the Hospital Improvement Bonds, Series 1983. The bonds do not constitute a debt
or pledge of the full faith and credit of the City and, therefore, are not reported in the financial
statements. As of December 31, 1999, the aggregate principal amount of conduit debt obligations
outstanding was $34,048,000.

Deficit Fund Balances or Retained Eamings of Individual Funds:

The following individual funds had deficit retained earnings or fund balances at December 31,
1999:

Special Revenue Funds
Office on Aging Grant $ 209,658

Capital Projects Funds
Permanent Capital improvement 2,778,065

Intemal Service Funds

General Insurance 98,337
Recreational Insurance 9,488
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CITY OF LAKEWQOOD, OHIQO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 19089

Deficit Fund Balances or Retained Earnings of Individuai Funds, Continued:

The fund balance deficit in the Office on Aging Grant Fund was caused by the accrual of certain
expenditures in excess of available resources. The deficit will be eliminated through an operating
transfer from the General Fund in 2000.

The Permanent Capital Improvement Fund was established to account for the acquisition and/or
construction of major facilities and equipment. The fund balance deficit resulted from the use of
short-term notes, which are recorded as liabilities in the fund, to finance major projects. The
deficit will be eliminated through an operating transfer from the Debt Service Fund in 2000..

The retained earnings deficits in the General Insurance Fund and the Recreational Insurance Fund
were caused by the accrual of claims that are estimated to be paid in the future. The funding for
these claims will be obtained through an operating transfer from other funds.

Income Taxes:

The City currently levies a municipal income tax at the rate of 1.5 percent. The City’s income tax
is levied upon the net income of corporations and other business entities and on the wages,
salaries, and other personal service compensation earned by residents of the City and non-
residents working within the City. Residents of the City are granted a .50 percent credit for
income taxes paid to other municipalities.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee compensation and
remit this tax to an intermediary collection agency (Regional Income Tax Agency) at least
quarterly. Corporations and self~employed individual taxpayers are required to pay their estimated
tax quarterly and file a declaration annually with the collection agency. The collection agency
remits tax collected for the City each month, net of a fee for their service,

Property Taxes:

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible personal (used
in business) property located in the City. The assessed value upon which 1999 collections were
based was $728,814,595 (per the Cuyahoga County Auditor). Ohio law prohibits taxation of
property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed vaiue without a vote of the
people. Presently, the City levies 3.47 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value. In addition to
the 3.47 mills, 13.83 mills has been levied based upon mills voted for general operations, bond
retirement, police and fire pensions, and sewage disposal.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Property Taxes, Continued:

A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rate Levied Initial Finat
Authorized for Current Year Collection Collection
Rate (a) Collection _Purpose Year Year
2.0(b) 2.00 Sewage Disposal 1860 Indefinite Life
8.65(b) 8.565 Operating 1549 Indefinite Life
Open End () 1.57 Police Pension 1969 indefinite Life
Open End (c) 161 Fire Pension 1969 Indefinite Life
13.83

{a) In mills per $1.00 of assessed valuation.

(b) The electors of the City have authorized Council to levy each year up to 2.0 and 8.65 mills, respectively,
on all taxable property in the City without further authorization from the electors for the aforesaid
purposes, but subject to change by further action of the electors. No portion of the 2.0 mills and 8.65
mills, respectively, can be preempted by an overfapping taxing subdivision.

{c) The electors of the City have authorized the Council to levy each year an amount of millage sufficient in
rate {o provide all moneys recuired by the laws of the State of Ohio to be paid by the City into the Police
and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of the State on all of the taxable property in the City without
further authorization from the electors, but subject to change by further action of the eleciors. No
portion of the levy can be preempted by an overlapping taxing subdivision.

Real property taxes, excluding public utility property, are all assessed at 35% of appraised market
value. Pertinent real property tax dates follow:

Coliection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the year preceding the collection year
Levy Date QOcteber 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Tangible personal property taxes are based on assessed values determined at the close of the most
recent fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year.

For the collection year 1999, the percentage used to determine taxable value of personal property
and inventory was 25%. Pertinent tangible personal property tax dates follow:

Collection Dates April 30 and September 30 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the current year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Public utility tangible personal property currently is assessed at 100% of its true value except for
rural electric companies (50%) and railroads (25%). Pertinent public utility tangible personal
property tax dates follow:

Collection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date December 31 of the second year preceding the collection year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes fo the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Loss Contingencies and Commitments:

There are several lawsuits pending in which the City is involved. City management estimates that
the potential claims against the City not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would
not materially affect the financial statements of the City.

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be
questioned as not being allowable expenditures under federal and state regulations. Such audits
could lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City management believes disallowances, if
any, will be immaterial.

Segment Information for Enterprise Funds:

The City currently maintains five Enterprise Funds which provide water, sewer, parking, housing
services and an ice rink facility. Information for the year ended December 31, 1999 for the
Enterprise Funds is summarized as follows:

Congregational Total
Sewer and Parking . Living Winterhurst Enterprise
Water Wastewater Facilities Facility lce Rink Funds

Qperating revenues $8,732,37T6 % 3,826,803 $ 274,685 $ 8,100 $ 827,437  $ 13,669,401
Tax revenues 1,282,377 1,282,377
intergovernmental 168,842 168,842
Depreciation {424,827) (1,179,780} (69,958) (601} {49,080) {1,724,226)
Operating income (loss) 1,313,307 (435,634) {55,842) (816) (33,608) 783,407
Net income {loss) ' 938,751 569,793 {55,842) (816) (112,544) 1,339,342
Additions to property,

plant and equipment 1,070,877 1,113,984 102,703 2,287,564
Additions to contributed

capital 0
Net working capital 3,130,562 2,993,515 300,530 8,637 63,173 6,496,417
Total identifiable assets 24,130,160 30,994,444 2,449,080 54,587 3,153,623 60,781,894
Bonds and other long- !

term liabilities payable

from operating revenues 9,002,476 6,845,537 1,292,200 17,140,213
Total equity 13,670,255 21,475,883 2,376,919 47,172 1,724,863 39,265,092
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Risk Management:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, Most of these risks
are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims
from risks covered by the City’s insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for
the past three fiscal years. In addition to these coverages, the City has implemented a formal self-
insurance program. The City has established a General Insurance Fund and the Recreational
Insurance Fund to account for and finance its uninsured risk of losses. All funds of the City
participate in the self-insurance program and make payments to the Internal Service Fund based
on claim experience.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, claims liabilities, arising from uninsured risks, are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported.

Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the General and Recreational Insurance
Funds during the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 were as follows;

1999 1998
Estimated claims payable January 1 $ 26,000 % 30,000
Pius: Current year claims and changes in estimates 42,975
Less: Claim payments {42,975) (4,000)
Estimated claims payable December 31 $ 26,000 3 26,000

The City of Lakewood maintains an Internal Service Fund to finance the cost of employee
hospitalization and medical insurance on a cost reimbursement basis. The City offers three pians
to its employees. One of the insurance plans is funded through a minimum premium agreement.
Under this plan, the plan administrator pays claims on behalf of the employees and bills the City
for the amount of actual claims paid plus administrative costs. The City is liable for claims up to
a maximum premium.

At December 31, 1999, $268,700 has been accrued for hospitalization claims representing an
estimate of the amount to be paid for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Changes in
the balances of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years follows:

1999 1998
Estimated claims payable January 1 $ 376,230 3 475,374
Plus: Current year cliaims and changes in estimates 867,270 1,421,984
Less. Claim payments {1,074,800) (1,521,128)
Estimated claims payable December 31 $ 268,700 $ 376,230
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

Workers' Compensation:

The State of Ohio is one of six states having monopolistic state funds which have the exclusive
authority to provide employers with workers' compensation insurance. Historically, under the
Ohio Workers' Compensation System for public employer taxing districts, there have been two
types of rating plans: base rating and experience rating. Ohio law was subsequently amended to
include an additional plan called retrospective rating, which is offered to Ohio employers who
meet the eligibility standards. Under the terms of the State of Ohio's retrospective rating plan, an
employer initially pays a fraction of the premium (the minimum premium) it would pay as an
experience-rated risk. As costs for the employer's injured workers' claims are incurred, the
employer must reimburse the State fund for those costs, subject to the plans individual claim cost
limitation and the employer's premium limitation.

During 1991, the City applied for and was accepted into the State's retrospective rating plan. The
City has established a Workers Compensation Self-Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund) to
account for and pay workers' compensation claims from accumulated assets of the fund. The
City's retrospective rating plan provides for an aggregate stop loss limit on premiums of 200% of
the employer's normal premium in the year in which the claim occurred and a $300,000 limit per
individual claim.

At December 31, 1999, $1,547,240 has been accrued for workers' compensation claims
representing estirnates of amounts to be paid for reported claims and incurred but not reported
claims calculated using trends in actual claims experience. Changes in the balances of claims
liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows:

1958 1998
Estimated Claims payable January 1 $ 1,701,098 $ 1,570,200
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates 367,671 130,898
Less: Claim payments (521,529)
Estimated Claims payable December 31 $ 1,547,240 $ 1,701,098

Subsequent Events:
On May 10, 2000 the City issued $4,870,000 of Various Purpose General Obligation Bond

Anticipation Notes, Series 2000. The proceeds will be used to finance all or a portion of the costs
of various permanent capital improvements and to refinance outstanding debt.

64



This page intentionally left blank.

65



CITY OF LAKEWOQOD, OHIO

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than special assessments, expendable trusts, or sources for major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Streets and Highways Fund To account for the revenue from the City’s share of state
gasoline taxes and vehicle registration fees. State law
requires that these taxes be used for maintenance of
streets.

Police and Fire Pensions Fund To account for the revenue from property taxes levied for
the partial payment of the current and accrued liability for
police and firemen disability and pension.

Enforcement and Education Fund To account for the revenue from fines imposed by the
Courts which are used for programs aimed at further
education in enforcement of D.U.L laws.

Litter Control Grant Fund To account for the revenues received from Ohio
Department of Natural Resources and expenditures relative
to this program.

Office on Aging Grant Fund To account for the revenues received through the Ohio

Department on Aging from the federal government under
the Older Americans Act and expenditures related to this

program.
Community Development Block To account for the revenues received from the federal
Grant Fund government and expenditures as prescribed under the

Community Development Block Grant program.

Community Festival Fund . To account for the revenues and expenditures relating to
various community activities held during the year.

Children’s Trust Grant Fund To account for the revenue received from the Governor’s
Office of Criminal Justice Services which are used to
implement a comprehensive community awareness and
prevention program for Lakewood’s youth.

Law and Drug Enforcement Fund To account for confiscated property and forfeited bonds.

Monies are designated for specific law enforcement
purposes and activities.
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Emergency Shelter Fund

Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment
Fund

Political Subdivision Fund

Bureau of Justice Grant Fund

Computer Research and Maintenance
Fund

Little Links Fund

Lakewood Hospital Fund

Just Friends Grant Fund

St. Ann’s Grant Fund

Children Who Witness Violence
Grant Fund

Juvenile Accountability Incentive

Block Grant Fund

Byrne Memorial Grant Fund

To account for grants issued to the City by the United
States Departinent of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) to fund the renovation, rehabilitation or conversion
of buildings for use as emergency shelters for the
homeless.

To account for the revenue from fines imposed by the
persons convicted of “Driving while under the influence
of alcohol (D.U.L).”

To account for the revenue from fines imposed by the
Courts which is distributed to the political subdivision
responsible for housing the D.UI offender to offset
related costs.

To account for grant proceeds from the federal government
and the expenditures relative to this program.

To account for the revenue from fines imposed by the
Courts which is used to provide for computerized research
services and maintenance of the Court’s computer system.

To account for the revenues and expenditures to maintain
the City’s miniature golf course.

To account for the revenues and expenditures related to
providing emergency medical service and other health and
safety services.

To account for grant proceeds from the State which fund
youth programming,.

To account for the revenues received from the St. Ann’s
Foundation which are used to expand Family Room
programming in the southeastern quadrant of the City.

To account for grant proceeds from the County used to
provide case management services to children who witness
violence.

To account for grant proceeds from the State used to
decrease the number of juveniles entering the court
systems.

To account for grant proceeds from the State used to
expand the community safety outreach program.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet - All Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 1999

Streats and Police Enforcement Litter Office on
Highways and Fire and Education Control Aging
Fund Pensions Fund Fund Grant Fund Grant Fund
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 706,140 § 523348 3 47 451 3 32,001 -9 61,512 -
Receivables:
Taxes ' ' 2,020,085
Accounts 4,513 875
Special assessments
Loans
Cther 505 51,212
Less allowanice for doubtiul accounts
Receivables, net 4,513 2,020,085 505 51,887
Due from other governments 92,694 6,519
Prepaid items
Inventories 83,288
Total assets $ 586633 § 2543433 8§ 47956 § 32001t 8 119,918
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 72,290 . 3 6,654
Bue to ather funds 308,544 : 275,424
Accrued wages and benefits 46,766 3 439 47,493
Deferred revenue $ 1,928,746
Total liabilities 427,600 1,829,746 439 329,576
Fund balance {deficit).
Reserved for loans receivable
Reserved for inventorias 83,286
Reserved for prepaid items
Reaserved for encumbrances 255,274 L 1 3,790 11,793 6,410
Undesignated and unreserved 120,473 613,687 44 166 19,769 (216,068)
Total fund balance (deficit) 459,033 613,687 47,9586 31,562 (208,658)
Total liabilities and fund batance 3 886,633 $ 2,543,433 8 47,956 $ 32,001 5 118,918
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Community . ndigent
Oevelopment Community Chiidren’s Law and Drug Emergency Drivers Alcohal Political
Block Grant Festival Trust Grant Enforcement Shelter Treatment Suhdivision
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
4,188 § 13,355 $ 169,404 s 129921 3 4,830
5 288512
3,500,012
5,000 457 550 415
3,533,824 457 550 415
214,015 5 36,585
3 3,747,838 4189 § 13,356 § 169,861 $ 36585 § 130,471 $ 5,245
- 113,538 308 3 9,572
163,390 27,013
34,722 '
636
312,286 ans 36,585
3,500,012
278,685 .3 780 5 9,280 s 38,742
{343,044) 3,891 12,575 160,581 (38,742) § 130471 % 5,245
3,435,553 3,801 13,355 169,881 4] 130,471 5245
$ 3.74?,&39 4,199 3 13355 § 189,861 $ 36585 § 130,471 3 5,245
Page2 of 4
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Other
Less allowance for doubtful accotits

Raceivables, net

Due from other govemments
Prepaid items
Inventories

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Brse to other funds
Accruad wages and benefits
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balance (deficit).
Reserved for Joans receivable
Reserved for inventories
Reserved for prepald items
Reserved for encumbrances
Undesignated and unreserved

Total fund balance (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balance

December 31, 1999

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet - All Special Revenue Funds

Computer Just
Bureau of Research and Lakewood Friends
Justice Grant Maintenance Little Links Hospital Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 6592 § 210,810 & 2813- § — 430,790 - - 1,856
71,499
3,525
104 3,735
{3.862)
184 3,735 71,362
9,435
3 6736 3 214,545 § 2,313 $ 511,837 1,866
$ 26,927
3,118
46,225
3,525
79,795
9,485
$ 106 30,458
$ 6,786 214,439 §$ 2,813 391,899 1,866
8,788 214,545 2,813 431,842 1,866
3 6,786 § 214545 & 2812 § 511,637 1,866
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Juvenile

Children Accountability Byme
St Ann's Who Witness Incentive Memorial Totals
Grant Violence Grant Block Grant Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund 1999 1998

$ 30,028 s 18,376 2,393,436 3 1,872,749
2,020,085 2,024,308
105,499 31,154

3,525
3,500,012 3,498,634
62,068 13,273

e e e e {3,662}
5,657,527 5,567,366
3 2,700 - 17,414 369,927 293,574
9,485 10,127
53,286 71,314
$ 30,028 $ 2700 & 18,376 3 17,414 8,543,661 $ 7,815,130
s ] 3 2,278 231,576 s 190,995
3 1,360 -4 8,247 787,096 708,324
183 570 2,701 179,104 116,521
1,833,807 1,930,081
192 1,930 2,278 10,948 3,131,683 2,946,921
3,500,012 3,433,550
B3,286 71,314
8,485 10,127
28 4,358 459 840,071 1,085,225
28,808 770 11,742 5,997 1,179,124 257,993
29,836 770 16,008 6,466 5411978 4 868,209
L] 30023 $ 2700 % 18,376 & 17,414 8,543,66¢ % 7,815,130
Page 4 0f &
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Revenues:.
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interast
Miscellaneous

Tota! revenuss

Expenditures:

Current:
Public safety
Health
Cultere and recreation
Community environment
Highways and streetls
General government

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiancy) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Cther financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers, in
Operating transfers, out
Net other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures
and other uses

Fund balance (deficit), Januery 1
Fund balance {deficit), December 31

CITY OF LAXEWOOD, OHIO .
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) -

All Special Revenue Funds

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Streats and Police Enforcement Litter Office on
Highways and Fire and Education Control Aging
Fund Pensions Fund Fund Grant Fund Grant Fund
- 885,613 $ 2038979
605,738 268,459 51,545 § 335,340
3 10,598
150,553 218,905
1,642,904 2,307,438 10,598 51,545 554 245
2,193,969 4,820
1,570,904
49,422
1,892,215
10,008 558 7418
1,902,223 2,193,969 4,820 49,980 1,678,322
(259,319} 113,469 5776 1,565 (1,024,077}
485,685 18,345 1,017,000
485,585 18,345 1,017,000
226,266 113,469 57713 19,910 (7.017
232,787 500,218 42,178 11,652 (202,581}
3 459,033 s 613,687 $ 47,956 31,562 $ (209,658)
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Community Indigent
Development Community Children's Law and Drug Emergency Drivers Alcohol Political
Block Grant Festival Trust Grant Enforcement Shelter Treatment Subdivision
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 3,362,081 s 41,868 3 106,928
s 9,042 3 22,466 8,008
102,281
4,000 13,280
3,464,362 4,000 41,868 22,322 106,928 22,466 8,006
23,978
41,364
8,352
3,462,172 106,828
6,526
2,190 1,550
3,464,362 5,352 41,364 25,528 106,928 6,526
o (4,352) 504 (3,206) 0 15,940 8,005
5,000
(2,522 (7.000)
5,000 (2,522) {7.000)
0 648 504 (5,728) 0 15,940 1,008
3,435,553 3,243 12,851 175,589 114,531 4,239
3 3,435,553 3,891 35 13,355 % 159,861 * 3 130,471 5,245
Page 2 of 4
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) -
All Special Revenue Funds

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Computer Just
Bureau of Research and Lakewood Friends
Justice Grant Maintenance Little Links Hospital Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits 3 48,826
Intergovernmental 3 22,702 18,723 $ 57,020
Charges for services $ 13,773 1,183,903
Fines and forfeits § 52,748
Interest 329
Miscellaneous 420 43
Total revenues 23,031 52,748 14,193 1,251,495 57,020
Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety 631,862
Health 456,630
Culture and recreation
Community environment 16,563 65,913
Highways and streets
General government 17,062
Capital outlay 24,200 53,521
Total expenditures . 24,200 17,062 18,563 1,142,013 65,913
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expendituras (1,169) 35,686 {2,370) 109,482 {8,883)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers, in 2,522
Operating transfers, out
Net other financing sources (uses) 2,522
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over {under} expenditures
and other uses 1,353 35,686 {2,370) 102,482 {8,893)
Fund balance (deficit), January 1 5,433 178,859 5,183 322,360 10,759
Fund balance (deficit), December 31 $ 8786 § 214,545 § 2813 % 431,842 § 1,866
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Juvenile

Children Accountabitity Byme
St Ann's Who Witness Incentive Memorial Totals
Grant Violence Grant Block Grant Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund 1999 1998

$ 2,924,592 % 2,912 548

43,826 49,484

3 8,452 - 19,554 3 51,623 4,948 933 4,930,589

1,197,676 1,099,688

102,860 107,938

102,610 121,352

30,000 417,201 405,823

30,000 6.452 19,554 51,523 9,742,698 9,627,422

2,854,625 2,650,082

2,068,898 1,956,274

5,352 7,382

15,539 5682 5,600 45,057 3,772,876 3,708,074

1,892,215 1,783,005

23,5858 19,208

2,278 101,723 178,569

15,539 5,682 7.878 45,057 10,722,281 10,300,592
14,481 770 11,676 6,466 {979,583) (673,170)

4,422 1,532,874 1,918,914
{8,522) (7,000)

4,422 ) 1,623,362 1,512 914

14,481 770 16,098 6,466 543,769 839,744

15,375 1} 8] 1) 4,868,209 4,028 465

29,836 $ 770 3 16,098 3 6,466 $ 5411,878 $ 4,868,209
Page 4 of 4
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - Streets and Highways Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues i
Taxes 3 778,000 h 885,073 $ 107,073
Intergovernmental 660,000 606,737 (53,263)
Miscellaneous : _ 12,000 3,636 (8,364)
Total revenues 1,450,000 1,495,446 45,446
Expenditures
Current
Streets and highways 1,950,034 1,896,902 93,132
Total expenditures 1,990,034 1,856,902 93,132
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (540,034) (401,456) 138,578
Other financing sources (uses) )
Other reimbursements 195,000 142,404 (52,596)
Operating transfers, in 480,000 480,000
Operating transfers, out (140,303) (91,807 48,496
Net other financing sources 534,697 530,597 (4,100)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses £5,337) 129,14} 134,478
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 15,972 15,972
Fund balance, January 1 268,391 268,391
Fund balance, December 31 $ 263,054 s 413,504 h 150,450
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Police and Fire Pensions Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Vartance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes - $ 2,023,401 $ 2,042,867 3 19,466
Intergovernmental 275,918 268,459 {7,459)
Total revenues 2,299.319 2,311,326 12,007
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 2,270,238 2,193,969 76,269
Total expenditures 2,270,238 2,193,969 76,269
Excess of revenues over expenditures 29,081 117,357 88,276
Fund balance, Janbary 1 405,991 405,991
Fund balance, December 31 3 435,072 b 523,348 $ 88,276

77



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuat
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Enforcement and Education Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actsl {(Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fines and forfeits - $ 11,000 $ 11,051 5 51
Total revenues ‘ 11,000 11,051 51
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 10,000 5,493 4,507
Total expenditiures 10,000 5,493 4,507
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,000 5,558 4,558
Fund balance, January 1 38,103 38,103
Fund balance, December 31 $ 39,103 % 43,661 N 4,558
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Litter Control Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental 5 55,000 $ 51,545 b (3,455)
Total revenues 55,000 51,545 (3,455)
Expenditures
Current
Community environment 75,000 58,614 16,386
Total expenditures 75,000 58,614 16,386
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (20,000) (7,069) 12,931
Other financing sources
Operating transfers, in 20,000 18,345 (1,655)
Total other financing sources 20,000 18,345 (1,655)
Excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures 0 11,276 11,276
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 77 77
Fund balance, January 1 8,855 8,855
Fund balance, December 31 3 8,855 $ 20,208 b 11,353
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Office on Aging Grant Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget _ - Actml {1Infavorable)
Revenues )
Intergovernmental b4 355,847 3 310,245 3 (45,602)
Miscellaneous 173,709 194,586 20,877
Total revenues 529,556 504,831 o (24,725)
Expenditures
Current
Health 1,580,766 1,567,114 13,652
Total expenditures 1,580,766 1,567,114 13,652
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (1,051,210) (1,062,283) (11,073)
Cther financing sources
Other reimbursements 6,000 . 5,705 (295)
Operating transfers, in 1,017,000 1,017,000
Total other financing sources 1,023,000 1,022,705 (295)
Deficiency of revenues and other sources
under expenditures (28,210) (39,578) (11,368)
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 924 924
Fund balance, Japuary 1 93,941 93,941
Fund balance, December 31 , R 65,731 b 55,287 b (10,444)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Community Development Block Grant Fund
For the vear ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 5865946 $ 3894216 $ (1,971,730)
Total revenues 5,865,946 3,894,216 (1,971,730}
Expenditures
Current
Community environment 4,776,446 3,378,658 1,397,788
Total expenditures 4,776,446 3,378,658 1,397,788
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,085,500 515,558 (573,942}
Other financing uses
Operating transfers, out (64,529) (42,039 22,490
Total other financing uses (64,529) {42,039 22,450
Excess of revenues over expenditures and
other uses 1,024,971 473,519 (551,452)
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 19,852 19,852
Fund deficit, January 1 (1,024,902) (1,024,902)

Fund balance (deficit), December 31 5 69 5 {531,531) 5 (531,600}
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non~GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Community Festival Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favarable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues .
Miscellaneous $ 4,000 $ 4,000
Total revenues 4,000 4,000
Expenditures
Current
Culture and recreation 10,000 8,352 s 1,648
Total expenditures 10,000 8,352 1,648
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (6,000) (4,352) 1,648
Other finencing sources
Operating transfers, in 5,000 5,000
Total other financing sources 5,000 5,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under) expenditures (1,000) 648 1,648
Fund balance, January 1 3,243 3,243
Fund balance, December 31 $ 2243 $ 3,891 $ 1,648
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Children's Trust Grant Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Agctual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 47,000 5 41,868 ¥ (5,132}
Tatal revenues 47,000 41,868 {5,132)
Expenditures
Current
Health 59,606 42,145 17,461
Total expenditures 59,606 42,145 17,461
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures {12,606) 277N 12,329
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 88 88
Fund balance, Jannary 1 12,763 12,763
Fund balance, December 31 5 157 g 12,574 b 12,417
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Law and Drug Enforcement Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actaal (Unfavorable)
Revenues .
Miscellaneous ‘$ 500 b 9,288 3 8,788
Total revenues 500 9,288 8,788
Expenditures
Current
Publijc safety 55,500 34,618 20,882
Total expenditures 55,500 34,618 20,882
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (55,000) (25,330) 29,670
Other financing sources (uses)
COther reimbursements 25,000 13,094 (11,906)
Operating transfers, out (2.552) . (2.522) 30
Total other financing sources 22,448 10,572 (11,876)
Deficiency of revenues and other scurces
over expenditures and other uses (32,552 (14,758) 17,794
Decertification of pricr year encumbrances 391 391
Fund balance, January 1 174,492 174492
Fund balance, December 31 ' $ 141,940 b 160,125 $ 18,185
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CITY OF LAKEWOQOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Emergency Shelter Fumd

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
Conummunity environment

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Decertification of prior year encumbrances
Fund deficit, January 1

Fund balance (deficit), December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actaal (Unfavorable)
$ 163,391 $ 70,343 $ (93,048)
163,391 70,343 {93,048)
94,664 74,443 19,621
94,064 74,443 19,621
69,327 (4,100 (73,427
6,358 6,358
{69,325) (69,325)
Ly 2 $ (67,067) b {67,069)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOQOD, OHIO _
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fines and forfeits b 18,000 h 22,959 3 4,959
Total revenues 18,000 22,959 4,959
Expenditures
Cuzrent
General government 10,000 6,526 3,474
Total expenditures 10,000 6,526 3,474
Excess of revenues over expenditures 8,000 16,433 8,433
Fund balance, January 1 113,488 113,488
Fund balance, December 31 £ 121,488 . § 129,921 b 8,433
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Political Subdivision Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fines and forfeits , 3 6,000 $ - B1I183 b 2,183
Total revenues ' 6,000 8,183 2,183
Expenditures
Total expenditures 0 0
Excess of revenues over expenditures 6,000 2,183 2,183
Other financing uses
Operating transfers, out (7,000) (7,000)
Total other financing uses . {7,000y {7,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) _
expenditures and other uses (1,000) 1,183 2,183
Fund balance, January 1 3,647 3,647
Fund balance, December 31 b 2,647 s 4,830 ¥ 2,183
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Bureau of Justice Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revennes
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
Public safety

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditires

Other financing sources
Operating transfers, in

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures

Fund balence, January 1

Fund balance, December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 25,000 22,702 (2,298)
970 805 (165)
25,970 23,507 (2,463)
25,224 24,348 876
25,224 24,348 876
746 (841) (1,587)
2,552 2,522 30)
2,552 2,522 €10))
3,298 1,681 (1,617
4,911 4,911
£ 8,209 6,592 (1,617)
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CITY OF LAKEWOQD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Computer Research and Maintenance Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fines and forfeits 3 63,500 h 53,623 3 (9,877)
Total revenues 63,500 53,623 (9,877)
Expenditures
Current
General government 55,000 17,168 37,832
Total expenditures 55,000 17,168 37,832
Excess of revenues over expenditures 8,500 36,455 27,955
Fund balance, January 1 174,249 174,249
Fund balance, December 31 $ 182,749 $ 210,704 b 27,955
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Little Links Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfaverable)
Revenues
Miscellaneous ' 5 19,550 3 14,192 b (5358)
Total revenues 19,550 14,192 (5,358)
Expenditures
Current
Community enviromment 19,573 16,562 3,011
Total expenditures 19,573 16,562 3,011
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures 23 (2,370) (2,347)
Fund balance, Janvary 1 5,183 5,183
Fund balance, December 31 $ 5160 % 2,813 3 (2,347)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Lakewood Hospital Fund

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Interpovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current

Public safefy
Health

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing uses
Operating transfers, out

Total other financing uses

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures and other uses

Decertification of prior year encumbrances

Fund balance, January 1

Fund balance, December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
5 45,000 3 48 226 3 3.826
19,000 18,723 Q77
1,265,671 1,111,355 (154,316)
1,093 1,093
1,329,671 1,179,997 (149,674)
810,430 643,631 166,799
438 604 421,790 16,814
1,249,034 1,065,421 183,613
80,637 114,576 33,939
(86,718) (42,413) 44 305
(86,718) {42,413 44 305
(6,081) 72,163 78,244
1,696 1,696
313,949 313,949
5 307,868 3 387,808 L) 79,940
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CITY OF LAKEWOQOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual

{(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Just Friends Grant Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
Community environment

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Decertification of prior year encumbrances
Fund deficit, January 1

Fund balance, December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 192,282 $ 117,286 3 (74,9%6)
192,282 117,286 (74,996)
129,543 67,042 62,501
129,543 67,042 62,501
62,739 50,244 (12,495)
13 13
(48,391) . (48,391)
$ 14,348 $ 1,866 $  (12,482)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - St. Am's Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Miscellaneous $ 30,000 3 30,000
Total revenues g 0 30,000 30,000
Expenditures
Current
Commmity environment 15,375 15,375
Total expenditures 15,375 15,375
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (15,375 14,625 30,000
Fund balance, January 1 15,375 15,375
Fund balance, December 31 g 0 £ 30,000 b 30,000
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Children Who Witness Violence Grant Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Community environment
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Fund balance, January 1

Fund balance (deficit), December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 13,800 $ 3,752 $ (10,048)
13,800 3,752 {10,048)
13,800 5112 8,688
13,800 5112 8,688
0 (1,360) {1,360)
0 0
3 0. % (1,360) by (1,360)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmenial

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
Community enviromment

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources
Operating transfers, in

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, Japuary 1

Fund balance, December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
b 19,554 h 19,554
19,554 19,554
19,554 12,234 b 7,320
19,554 12,234 7,320
0 7,320 7.320
4,422 4,422
0 4422 4,422
0 11,742 11,742
O 0
$ ] & 11,742 $ 11,742
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

m Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual

(Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - Byrme Memorial Grant Fund

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Community environment

Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Fund balance, January 1

Fund balance (deficit), December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3 51,814 34,109 i (17,705)
51,814 34,109 (17,705)
51,814 42 825 8,989
51,814 42,825 8,989
0 (8,716) (8,716)
0 0
£ g (8,716) $ (8,716)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are established to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities and equipment other than those financed by Proprietary Funds.

Permanent Capital Improvement To account for the acquisition of equipment and the

Fund construction of general fixed assets of the City.

Downtown Development Fund To account for the acquisition and demolition of properties
necessary to proceed with the development of a downtown
shopping center.

Lakehouse Breakwall Fund To account for the construction of a permanent breakwall

to protect the property of the citizens of the City.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Combining Balance Sheet - All Capital Projects Funds

Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Spacial assessments receivable
Duye from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Notes payable

Totat liabilities
Fund balance (deficit):
Reserved for encumbrances

Undesignated and unreserved

Total fund balance (deficit)

Total habilities and fund balance

December 31, 1999

Permanent
Capital Downtown Lakehouse Totals
improvement Development  Breakwalil
Fund Fund Fund 1998 1988
$ 2,170,500 3 6060 $ 2176560 § 1,663,104
260,000
181,925 181,925 227201
$ 200,800 200,900 200,200
$2170500 & 200900 § 187985 § 2559385 § 2351205
$ 535841 $ 535841 $ 331,656
867,624 967,624 967,624
$ 181,925 181,925 227,201
3,445.000 3,445,000 1,286,800
4,548,565 181,925 5,130,450 2,813,281
638,444 638,444 328,449
(3,416,508} § 200,500 6,060 (3,209,549) (750,525}
{2,778,065) 200,800 6,060 (2,571,105) (482,076)
$2170500 $ 200900 § 187985 2559385 § 2i351 I205
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Deficit) -

Revenues:
Intergovernmental-
Special assessments

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capitat outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Tolal expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

{under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds of general obligation notes
Proceeds of general obligation bonds

Proceeds of OPWC loan
Operating transfers, in
Operating transfers, out

Net other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under) expenditures

and other uses

Fund balance (deficit), January 1

Fund balance (deficit), Decernber 31

All Capital Projects Funds

Permanent

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Capital Downtown takehouse Totals
tmprovement Development  Breakwall
Fund Fund Fund 19589 1998
$ 7,500 % 7,500
~ $ 48771 48771 8 45,085
7.500 48,771 54271 45,085
$ 260,000 260,000
2,591,123 2,591,123 2397610
35,000 35,000 1,321,800
$.610 9,610 11,273
2,591,123 260,000 44,610 2,885,733 3,730,683
- {2,583,623) {260,000} 2,161 {2,841,462) {3,685,618)
1,286,800
1,938,800
616,000
1,001,000 1,001,000 1,010,154
(268,567) (268,567) {22,841}
732,433 732,433 4,829,113
(1,851,190} (260,000 2,161 {2,108,029) 1,143,465
(926,875} 450,900 3,899 {462,076) (1,605,571}
$ (2778,065) § 200900 $ 6,080 $(2,571,105) $ (462,076)
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Permanent Capital Improvement Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources {uses)
Proceeds of general obligation notes

Operating transfers, in
Operating transfers, out

Net other financing sources
Deficiency of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other
uses
Decertification of prior year encumbrances

Fund balance, Januery 1

Fund balance, December 31

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 7,500 5 7,500
h 0 7,500 7,500
3,921,341 2,907,537 1,013,804
3,921,341 2,907,537 1,013,804
(3,921,341 (2,900,037 1,021,304
2,345,227 2,319,200 (26,027)
840,000 840,000
(262,982) (262,982)
2,922.245 2,896,218 (26,027
(999,096) (3,819 995,277
9,254 9,254
999.096 999,096
$ 0 § 1,004,531 $ 1,004,531
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CITY OF LAKEWQOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
it Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - Downtown Development Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Acual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Total revenues $ 0 $ 0
Expenditures
Current
General government 260,000 260,000
Total expenditures 260,000 260,000
Excess of revenues under expenditures (260,000) (260,000)
Fund balance, January I 260,000 260,000

Find balance, December 31 3 0 5 o] $ 0
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - Lakehouse Breakwall Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues |
Special assessments 3 45,204 $ 46,771 $ 1,567
Total revenues 45,204 46,771 1,567
Expenditures
Debt service 44,610 44,610
Total expenditures 44,610 . 44,610
Excess of revenues over expenditures 594 2,161 1,567
Fund balance, January 1 3,899 3,899
Fund balance, December 31 b3 4493 $ 6,060 b 1,567
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated by user charges
for goods or services provided primarily to the general public.

Water Fund To account for the provision of water distribution to the
residential and commercial users in the City.

Sewer and Wastewater Fund To account for the sanitary sewer services provided to the
residential and commercial users of the City.

Parking Facilities Fund To account for the off-street parking services provided by
the City.
Congregational Living Facility Fund To account for residential accommodations for senior

citizens provided by the City.

Winterhurst Ice Rink Fund To account for the revenues and costs of operating the
municipal ice rink facility.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revermes, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Water Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Charges for services $ 8,689,850 $ 8,695,884 $ 6,034
Special assessments 1,000 834 (166)
Interest 45,000 ' 48,241 3,241
Total revenues 8,735,850 7 8,744,959 9,109
Expenses
Current
Sanitation 7,275,099 6,949,629 325,470
Capital outlay 1,147,601 316,069 831,532
Debt service 837,658 840,393 (3,235)
Tota] expenses 9,260,358 8,106,591 1,153,767
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses (524,508) 638,368 1,162,876
Other financing sources (uses)
Other reimbursements 1,000 883 Qamn
Operating transfers, out (116,192) (75,686) 40,506
Net other financing uses (115,192) (74,803) 40,389
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under) expenses
and other uses (639,700) 563,565 1,203,265
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 196,981 196,981
Fund equity, Jannary } 2,977,230 2,977,230
Fund equity, December 31 $ 2,337,530 $ 3737776 $ 1,400,246

109



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Sewer and Wastewater Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues . . .
Taxes $ 1,272,580 3 1,284.8322 $ 12,242
Intergovernmental 173,534 168,842 {4,692)
Charges for services 3,774,938 3,825,034 i 50,096
Special assessments 698 698
Total revenues 5,221,052 5,279,396 58,344
Expenses
Current
Sanitation 3,429,860 3,019,140 410,720
Capital cutlay 1,145,486 385,778 759,708
Debt service 864,060 864,069 (&)
Total expenses 5,439 406 4,268,987 1,170,419
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenses (218354) 1,010,409 1,228,763
Other financing sources (uses)
Other reimbursements 500 . (500)
Operating transfers, out (234,532) (153,818) 80,714
Net other financing uses : (234,032) (153,818) 80,214
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (inder) expenses and
other uses (452,386} 856,591 1,308,977
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 110,206 110,206
Fund equity, January 1 1,039,880 1,039,880
Fund equity, December 31 b 587,494 $ 2006677 $ 1,419,183
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CITY OF LAKEWQOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Parking Facilities Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Charges for services $ 273,470 $ 274,686 $ 1,216
Total revenues 273470 274 686 1,216
Expenses
Current
Streets and highways 259314 237,312 22,002
Total expenses 259314 237312 22,002
Excess of revenues over expenses s 14,156 37,374 23,218
Other financing uses
Operating transfers, out (18,655) (12,324) 6,331
Total other financing uses (18,655) (12,324) 6,331
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) N
expenses and other uses {4,499) 25,050 29,549
Fund equity, January 1 77,574 77,574
Fund equity, December 31 b 73,075 3 102,624 $ 29,549
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Congregational Living Facility Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues .
Miscellaneous $ 8,100 3 8,100
Total revenues 8,100 8,100 i
Expenses
Current
Health 10,920 7910 5 3,010
Total expenses 10,920 7,910 3,010
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenses {2,820) 190 3,010
Decertification of prior year encumbrances 27 27
Fund equity, Janvary 1 15,835 15,835
Fund equity, December 31 3 13,015 $ 16,052 % 3,037
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fumd Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Winterhurst Ice Rink Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Charges for services ] 931,687 3 328,522 b (103,165
Total revenues 931,687 828,522 (103,165)
Expenses
Current
Culture and recreation 907,922 793,400 114,522
Capital cutlay 108,583 122,489 {13,906)
Debt Service 66,123 66,123
Total expenses 1,082,628 982,012 100,616
Deficiency of revenues under expenses (150,941} (153,490) (2,549)
Other financing uses
Operating transfers, out (21,474) (11,907} 9,567
Total other financing uses (21,474) (11,%07) 9.567
Deficiency of revenues under expenses
and other uses (172,415 (165,397) 7,018
Decertification of prior year encumnbrances 64,382 64,382
Fund equity, January 1 219,709 219,709
Fund equity, December 31 $ 47,2594 & 118,694 b4 71,400
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CITY OF LAKEWOOQOD, OHIO
Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are established to account for the financing of significant goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or other governments
on a cost reimbursement basis.

General Insurance Fund To account for the funds reserved to finance potential
losses on property and liability cases.

Recreational Insurance Fund To account for the funds reserved to finance potential
losses on recreational liability cases.

Hospitalization Fund To account for the premiums charged to City funds and the
payments incurred for hospitalization insurance provided
as an employee benefit.

Workers Compensation Fund To account for workers’ compensation costs incurred
under the State’s retrospectively rated workers’
compensation program,
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revennes, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - General Insurance Fand
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues ,
Interest 3 22,000 $ 20,306 h 3 (1,694)
Total revenues 22,000 20,306 (1,694)
Expenses
Current
Community environment 50,000 42,974 7,026
Total expenses 50,000 42,974 7,026
Deficiency of revenues under expenses (28,000) {22,668) 5,332
Fund equity, January 1 444 099 444,099
Fund equity, December 31 $ 416,099 $ 421,431 h 5,332
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis) - Recreational Insurance Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Total revenues 3 0 5 0
Expenses
Current
Culture and recreation 10,600 £ 10,000
Total expenses 10,000 0 10,000
Deficiency of revenues under expenses (10,000) 0 10,000
Fund equity, Jannary 1 243,512 243,512
Fund equity, December 31 3 233,512 3 243,512 $ 10,000
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Hospitalization Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Total revenues b 0 b 0
Expenses
Current
General government 2,707,933 2,381,239 h 326,694
Total expenses 2,707,933 2,381,239 326,694
Deficiency of revenues under expenses (2,707,933) (2,381,239 326,694
Other financing sources
Other reimbursements 110,000 117,590 7,590
Operating transfers, in 2,653,833 1,892,331 (761,502
Total other financing sources 2,763,833 2,009,921 {753,912)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over (under) expenses 55,900 (371,318) (427,218
Fund equity, January 1 §97,288 897,288
Fund equity, December 31 S 953,188 $. 525,970 $ (427.218)

120



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Workers Compensation Fund
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Miscellaneous . b 391,506 % 391,506
Total revenues 5 0 391,506 391,506
Expenses
Current
General government 834,826 700,384 134,442
Total expenses 834,826 700,384 134,442
Deficiency of revenues under expenses (B34,826) (308,878) 525,948
Other financing sources
Operating transfers, in 756,291 308,878 447413
Total other financing sources 756,291 308,878 (447 ,413)
Deficiency of revenues and other sources
under expenses (78,535) 0 78,535
Fund equity, January 1 1,546,209 1,546,209
Fund equity, December 31 $ 1467674 $ 1,546,209 5 78,535
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CITY OF LAKEWOQOD, OHIO
Agency Funds

Agency Funds are established to account for assets received and held by the City acting in the capacity of
an agent or custodian. .

Municipal Court Fund To account for assets received and disbursed by the Municipal
Court as agent or custodian relative to civil or criminal court
matters.

Other Agency Funds To hold in trust those funds held by the City and received from

a contractor, developer, or individual to insure compliance
with the ordinances of the City of Lakewood.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet - All Agency Funds
December 31, 1999

Totals
Municipal
Court Qther
Fund Funds 1999 1998
Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68,568 § 302517 % 368,085 $ 297,251
Tota! assels 5 66,568 § 302,517 % 369085 $ 297,251
Liabilities:
Other tiabilities $ 66,568 § 302,517 % 369085 % 297,251
Total liabiities % 66,068 $ 302,617 3 369,085 $ 287,251
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CITY OF LAXEWOOD, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - All Agency Funds
For the year ended December 31, 1999

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1998 Additions Deductions 1999
Municipal Court Fund
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,044 $2,198477 §$ 2,190,853 $ 66,568
Liabilities:
COther liabilities $ 59,044 $ 2198477 $ 2,180,853 § 66,568
Other Agency Funds
Assets!
Cash and cash equivalents $ 238207y % 151080 & 86,750 § 302,517
Liabilities: ' :
Cther liabilities $ 238207 % 151,080 % 88,750 $ 302,517
Total - All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 297,251 $ 2,349,537 $ 2.277,703 369,085
Total assets 297,251 $ 2,349,537 $ 2,277,703 369,085
Liabilities:
Other liabilities 207,251 § 2,349,537 §$ 2,277,703 369,085
Total liabilities 297,251 § 2,349,537 $ 2,277,703 369,085
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CITY OF LAKEWCOOD, OHIO
General Fixed Assets Account Group

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is a self balancing account group to account for the fixed
assets owned by the City exclusive of those acquired by Proprietary Funds.
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source

December 31, 1999

General fixed assets:

Land and land improvements
Buildings, structures and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total General fixed assets

Investment in general {ixed assets from:

General fund revenues

Special revenue funds

General obligation notes
General obligation bonds
Federal grants

State and local grants

Donations

Transfers from proprietary funds

Total Investment in general fixed assets
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2,927,726
16,226,593
13,372,774

379,084

32,906,177

10,996,395
3,252,086
12,812,356
3,162,492
2,454,536
134,640
28,304
65,368

32,906,177



CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function and Activity
For the year ended December 31, 1999

General General
Fixed Assots Fixed Assets
January 1, . December 31,
1589 Additions Deletions Transfers 1959
Public safety
Police 3 2,558,586 3 537,558 3 (72,265) § (14,709) 3 3,009,170
Fire 8,785,757 154,471 {7.8B94) {24,405) 6,804,926
Animal warden 235,824 ' 3,505 239,329
Total Public safety 9,580,167 889,029 (80,159) (35,612) 10,153,425
Health
Traffic 522,353 (21,338) 8,187 509,202
Office on aging 1,268,520 22,641 (4,734) 12,173 1,299,600
Human services 15,262 (1.279) 1,694 15,877
Health 107,880 (10,443) o7 437
Communications 88,588 1,685 90,283
Tota) Health 1,988,341 37,903 (27,351) 13,306 2,012,198
Culture and recreation
Parks §,596,875 51,285 (44,552) 3513 6,607,191
Total Culture and racreation 8,596,975 51,2485 {44,592) 3,513 6,607,191
Community environment
Building 85,826 53,317 {1,153 5,264 143,254
Community environment 722,430 119,559 (6,632) 1,695 B3IT, 112
Youth services 44,206 1,872 46,078
Planning 287,541 1,729 (2,915} (226,048) 50,307
Litter prevention 23,244 (118) 23,126
Little finks 11,690 11,690
Total Community environment 1,174,997 176,477 (10,818) (219,089) 1,121,567
Sanitation
Refuse 3,052,107 186,088 {1,966) 1,694 3,237,934
Total Sanitation 3,052,107 186,082 (1,968) 1,694 3,237,934
Highways and streets
Streets 2,208,868 48,234 (39,305) {126,043) 2,091,752
Total Highways and streets 2,208,858 48,234 (39,305) (126,043) 2,091,752
Goneral government
Council 30,880 1,100 1,3861) (1.328) 28,301
Courts 170,939 89,230 . (315D (320) 256,697
Chvil service 4,830 4,830
Mayor 47,841 (1,608} 46,233
Personnel 33631 (6,362) 1,615 28,884
Fublic information 20,742 {750) 2,704 22,696
Public works 91,189 (2,173 (23,.412) 65,604
Land and buildings 5,280,768 492,437 251,759 6,024,962
Sidewalk repair 6,287 6,287
Fleet 65,805 5,453 71,358
Engineering 177,112 8,699 (3,300) 22,000 204,511
Finance 124,112 1,021 (3.473) 5,508 127,168
Information systems 636,231 151,809 (762) (90,585) 696,793
Law 99,820 {3,035) 56,785
Total General government 6,724,350 810,301 (25,676) 173,354 7,682,109

Total General Fixed Assets $ 31,325,843 $ 1,959,338 $ (230,167) § (188837) § 329806177
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CITY OF LAXEWOOD, OHIO
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function and Activify
December 31, 1999

Buildings, Machinery .
Land and Land Structures and and Construction
Improvements improvements Equipment in Progress Total
Public safety
Police 3 759,453 $ 2249717 3 3,009,170
Fire $ 1042958 3,752,483 2,109 485 6,804,928
Animal warden 167,359 71,970 239,329
Total Public safety 1,042,958 4,679,285 4,431,172 10,153,425
Health
Traffic 215,452 293,750 509,202
COffice on aging 104,347 609,333 585,920 1,299,800
Human services 1,972 3 13,705 15,677
Health 97,437 a7 437
Communications 80,283 80,283
Total Health 104,347 824,785 1,069,362 13,705 2,012,198
Culture and recreation
Parks 1,012,977 4,847,603 746,612 6,607,192
Total Culture and recreation 1,012,977 4,847 503 746,612 B,607,182
Communlity environment
Building 143,254 143,254
Community environment 615,114 221,998 B37,112
Youth services 48,078 46,078
Planning 50,307 60,307
Litter prevention 12,850 10,276 23,126
Little links 10,645 1,045 11,680
Total Community environment 625,759 12,850 482,958 1,121,567
Sanitation
Refuse 14,688 445,130 2,750,166 27,950 3237934
Total Sanitation 14,668 445,130 2,750,166 27,950 3,237,934
Highways and streaots
Strests 120,860 1,970,601 2,091,751
Total Highways and strecls 120,860 1,970,891 2,091,751
General government
Council 29,301 | 29,301
Courts 256,697 256,697
Civil sarvice 4,830 4,830
Mayor 46,233 45,233
Personnel 28,884 28,884
Public information 22,696 22 696
Public works 65,604 65,604
Lands and buildings 128,997 5,296,070 279,747 322,148 6,024,962
Sidewalk repair 6,287 6,287
Fleet 67,769 3,589 71,358
Engineering 204 511 204 511
Finance 127,168 127,168
Information systems 685,101 11,692 £96,793
Law 96,785 98,785
Total General government 126,997 5,296,070 1,921,613 337,429 7,682,109

Total General Fixed Assets § 2,927,726 $ 16,226553 $ 13372774 1 379,084 ] 32,906,177
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CITY OF LAKEWQOD, OHIO
Statistical Section
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CITY OF LAKEWOQOD, OBIO

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
December 31, 1999

Gross Indebtedness $40,255,000

Less: G.0O. Water System Bonds 126,000

G.O. Sewer Sysiem Bonds 7,635,000

VWater Revenue Bonds 6,390,000

Recreation Facility Bonds 1,294,000

Special Assessment Bonds and Notes 386,600

Total Exempt Debt $15,831,600
Net Indebtedness Subject to 10-1/2% Debt Limitation $24,423 400
Net Indebtedness Subject to 5-1/2% Debt Limitation $24,423,400
Assessed Valuation of City (1998 for 1999 Collection} $728,5814,585

10-1/2% of Valuation (Maximum Voted and Unvoted Non-exempt

General Obligation Bond Debt Allowed) ‘ $?6,525,532
Net Indebtedness Subject to 10-1/2% Debt Limitation 24 423 400
Legal 10-1/2% Margin $52,102,132

5-1/2% of Valuation (Maximum Unvoted and Unvoted Non-exempt

General Obligation Bond Debt Allowed} %$40,084,803
Net indebtedness Subject to 5-1/2% Debt Limitation 24 423,400
Legal 5-1/2% Margin ) $15,661,403
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Insurance Summatry

Summary of Casualty-Property insurance carried by the City of Lakewood as of December 31, 1999:

AUTOMOBILE

Insurer: CNA

Agent: Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.

Limits; ' $1,000,000 Liability
Comprehensive on all vehicles
Collision on all vehicles

Deductible: Liability — None
Comprehensive - $250
Collision ~ $1,000

Effective: 9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000

POLICE PROFESSIONATL LIABILITY

Insurer: National Casualty Company
Agent: Love Insurance Agency, Inc.
Limits: $1,000,000 Liabitity
Deductible: 315,000 )

Effective: 9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000

PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY

Insurer: National Casualty Company
Agent: Love Insurance Agency, Inc.
Limits: $1,000,000

Deductible: $15,000

Effective: 9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Insurer: St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co.
Agent: Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.
Limits: $1,000,000 / $3,000,000
Deductible: None

Effective: 9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Insurance Summary

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE BLANKET BOND & DEPOSITOR’S FORGERY

Insurer:
Agent:
Limits:
Deductible:
Effective:

CNA

Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.
$100,000 / $25,000

None

9/1/1999 — 9/1/2000

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY INSURANCE
(Buildings, Contents, Extra Expense & Valuable Papers)

Insurer:
Agent:
Limits:
Deductible:
Effective:

CONTRACTOR’S EQUIPMENT

Insurer:
Agent:
Limits:
Deductible:
Effective:

OILER & MACHINERY

Insurer:
Agent:
Limits:
Deductible:
Effective:

ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING

Insurer:
Agent:
Limits:
Deductible:
Effective:

CNA

Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.

Blanket Buildings & Contents - 385,401,162
$1,000

9/1/1999 - 5/1/2000

CNA

Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.
$1,232,833

$500

9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000

CNA
Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.

" $5,000,000

$5,000
9/1/1999 - /1/2000

CNA

Wichert Insurance Services, Inc.
$1,276,637

$500

9/1/1999 - 9/1/2000
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO
Demographic Statistics

Population
City Cuyvahoga Coun MSA State
1970.... 70,173 1,721,300 2,063,729 10,652,017
1980 ccerremmereeres e ..61,963 1,498,400 1,898,825 10,797,630
1990..... e rtreeeee 99,718 1,412,140 1,831,122 10,847,115
Age Distribution
Per 1990 Census
Number Percentage

Under 5 years .. 3,945 6.61
5-17 years............. 9,907 16.59
18 - 24 years............ 5,584 935
25 - 44 years _. 22.553 37.77
45 - 64 years........... 9,655 16.17
65 and over...... : 8,074 13.51
TOTAL.......... 59,718 _ 190.00
Median age...ooeeeereen 327

Males....cceen.. 27,792

Females ...... 31,926

Distribution of Household by Income Bracket

Per 1990 Census - Avg Household 2.2 persons

Number Percentage

$0-$4,999 ... 1,105 4.08
$5,000 - $14,999 4,932 18.20
$15,000 - $24,999 ... 5,708 21.06
$25,000 - $49,999 .... 9,907 36.55
$50,000 - $74,999 .. 3,655 13.49
$75,000 and over........ 1.795 6.62
TOTAL............. . 27,102 100.00
Median Income ....... $38,100

Source: U.S. Census of Population 1970, 1980, 1590
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CITY OF LAKEWOOD, OHIO

Miscellaneous Statistics

Date of Incorporation - 1911
Form of Government.... Mayor - Council
Area 5.66 square miles
Miles Of SIrEets ..c.omrnmieeerraereceromaaresaonmeseencas 93
Number of street lights 3,554
Fire Protection

Number of fire stations ..... 3

Number of firemen and officers 75
Police Protection

Number of police stations 1

Number of policemen and officers ......... 86
Lakewood Hospital ......... 400 beds
Education (K-5 only):

Number of teachers......... - 134

Number of students ..... 2,988
Municipal Water Department

Number of consumers ....... 14,384

Average daily consumption in cubic feet..... 842,246

Miles of water mains......... 111
Sewers

Sanitary Sewers ....cc.cc—. 74.53 miles

Storm sewers.......... 65.91 miles

Combined. 25.28 miles

Total Sewers...... e 165.72 miles
Building permits issued... 2,014
Number of full-time employees... 544
Number of part-time employees...... 129
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

CITY OF LAKEWOOD

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

esarn Lubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JULY 18, 2000
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